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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Boer Power Holdings Limited (the
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to information to accompany preliminary announcements of annual results.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MGER

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
-l F-F “ECRE O _RAF B NF
VGO RMB'OOO  RMB000  RMB'OOO  RMB'000
LT \RETr ARETT AR%Tr ARETT
Revenue and Profit/(loss) BARER/ (B58)
Revenue A 626,624 572,643 816,665 737,128 628,235
Profit/(loss) before taxation BHRADER / (B18) 32,088 96,676 42,846 6,884 (966,928)
Income tax expense g (1,997) (84,215) (33,512) (1,142) (30,951)
Profit/{loss) for the year ERanl/ (B8) 30,091 12,461 9,334 5742 (997,879
Profit/(loss) attributable to: UTATEERR/(E8)
Equity shareholders of the Company ARFERRR 30,231 12,142 15,824 3,480 (958,429)
Non-controliing interests Ei 0 3 (140) 319 (6,490) 2,262 (39,450)
Assets and Liabilities BEREE
Non-current assets EREEE 395,404 364,695 541,483 603,732 678,809
Current assets TEEE 979,717 966,352 936,626 1,299,679  1,115437
Current liabilities mEBAaE (872,547)  (896,919) (780,812  (1,284,611)  (1,097,917)
Non-current liabilties ERBEE (213,320)  (166,763)  (499,156)  (439,991)  (507,249)
Net assets BEFE 289,254 267,365 198,141 178,809 189,086
Equity attributable to: DN ATERES
Equity shareholders of the Company KRREERRR 289,902 267,873 261,244 232,938 238,552
Non-controlling interests R (648) (508) (63,109) (54,129) (49,466)

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
—ZT - 4437 Annual Report 2022



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFEHE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director’) AARRKEES([E5))e((EH2 )AKE
of Boer Power Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Boer [ERBEEE HIERER AT ([AAT]H[1EE
Power”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | reportto B H ) REWB AR (B A£E ) HE—=
shareholders the annual results of the Group for the year ended —Z—F+_-_F=+—HIt+Z@A(ZE==
31 December 2022 (the “Year 2022” or the “year”). F [ FRN]) R FELE -

In 2022, the normal operation of business activities was affected —ZT=-—F - FERE BESHEHHEME L
by various factors such as the resurgence of the pandemic, MBMEHMELERE @ FELLEHETE
volatile international environment and the global interest rate  ## - 2L BEHERE AME N « BELE
hikes, which posed significant headwinds to the recovery of the IRIBFEMIkE - PEKEEBNEFET - B
global economy. Despite the challenging macro environment, BXR#& izt REEHRT  FRBRANEEZAERL
the Chinese economy remained stable in general. According ERI.0%EBARK1208ET 2R MEE
to the statistics from the National Bureau of Statistics, the i : 2RETEERLE(FSEF)BALiEE
gross domestic product surpassed market expectations and 5 1% E 4 ARES7T 28 BT o BEZE L EEHN
exceeded RMB120 trillion during the year, representing an ZEREE @ KEASHE  MPBERFES
increase of 3.0% year-on-year. The fixed asset investment in 2 EHRFEIEHIZEE @ 2585 RELS
China (excluding farmers) amounted to approximately RMB57.2 R hayE) 1 - MBI AREE BT AFERE - &K
trillion, representing a year-on year increase of 5.1%. As the SEEFHLHIBEREANESIT T  RERNE
economic activities returned to normal from the pandemic with &% 58k - EIELL @ HEUEACHEE S
the improved economic outlook, and the Chinese government =, - BIR 2 EEFRARIEN - NEBEFE BB LT
announced the general relaxation of pandemic containment  fiEZ ML S HITERLER  WIEEE - RE
measures at the end of the year, the economic recovery was N{EREED  HEREKNETPEEE  ¥£ET
provided with a strong impetus which drove the positive growth — IRIZHETf o

of the Group’s profitability. The Group recognized that risks come

with opportunities in the business environment. During the year,

the Group actively identified changes and operated in a prudent

manner, at the same time achieving overall cost reduction and

efficiency improvement through refined management. Capitalizing

on its leading technological advantages and extensive industry

experience, the Group continued to explore new customer bases

by leveraging on its competitive edges in terms of economies of

scale, service and price, hence achieving steady improvement in

the results.

BEESHEZERERLDT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2022 —& — — 4



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)
FREHRE @

During the year, the Group made progress while maintaining
stability and achieved satisfactory business development with
positive operating performance. The Group recorded a revenue
of RMB626.6 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
9.4%. Benefitted from the consistent growth in the added value
of technologies, products and services, the Group’s gross profit
margin remained high. Despite that supply chains were under
pressure due to the COVID-19 pandemic during the year, the
Group’s gross profit margin improved steadily in the second
half of the year as compared to the first half of the year as a
result of the ongoing enhancement of business management
and overall efficiency. During the year, the Group recorded a
gross profit margin of 29.2% and gross profit of RMB183.1
million. Meanwhile, since the Group strived to enhance operating
efficiency and tighten control over costs and expenses, profit
from operations, profit before taxation and profit for the year
amounted to RMB59.8 million (2021: RMB124.1 million),
RMB32.1 million (2021: RMB96.7 million) and RMB30.1 million
(2021: RMB12.5 million) respectively. Profit for the year grew by
141.5%. Excluding the one-off gain of RMB94.0 million from the
disposal of certain subsidiaries of the Group in 2021, profit from
operations and profit before taxation increased by 98.7% and
1,101.8% year-on-year respectively. Through implementation of
stringent internal control system, the Group’s trade receivables
and inventory remained at a stable level while the loan size and
finance costs were also maintained stable and sound, hence
generating positive operating cash flows for seven consecutive
years with the continuous improvement in the gearing structure.

As a leading service provider in the industry, Boer Power has
devoted considerable efforts in exploring the power distribution
management industry for over 35 years and provided customers
with almost unique one-stop intelligent power integrated
management solutions in the industry. In order to help customers
achieve intelligent power distribution and power consumption
to enhance management efficiency, leveraging on its years of
experience in technology and the advantages of continuous
core research and development as well as based on its own
big data platform “Cloud Smart” and modern communication
and Internet technology, the Group provided customers with
one-stop intelligent power integrated management solutions,
including hardware integrated systems, customised operating
systems and software as well as products and services for online
and offline operation and maintenance management. In recent
years, the Group optimized the power consumption database
for various industries and achieved considerable progress. With
its technological edges, the Group was committed to reducing
operating costs while ensuring the provision of safe and stable
intelligent power distribution services, aiming to provide optimal
services and economic benefits to the customers.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
—ZE = —4F4F%H Annual Report 2022
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)
FE®RE @

With the accelerated innovation of new technologies such as big
data, cloud computing, artificial intelligence and block chain, the
digital transformation of various industries has been expedited.
Coupled with the fact that the country attaches great importance
to the digital economy, the digital economy industry has
developed rapidly. Data centre, as a key infrastructure supporting
the development of digital transformation, plays an indispensable
role in the development process of the digital economy. Against
the backdrop of rapidly growing digital economy, the total
energy consumption of data centres has also continued to rise.
According to the data from China Academy of Information and
Communications Technology, the total electricity consumption
of data centers in China is forecasted to exceed 380 billion
kWh in 2030, while the power consumption of data centres will
continue to increase. In order to further capture the opportunities
in the smart power management market associated with the
new segment of digital economy, the Group has leveraged
its leading technology and profound experience in the data
centre power distribution market, kept abreast of the market
development trend over the years, continuously upgraded its
technologies and services and actively optimized its “One-stop
Data Centre Solution" to meet more data centre customer needs
continuously, thereby achieving a steady increase in market
share.

In addition, with the rapid urbanization in China, the formation of
multi-level rail transit networks has been accelerated, resulting
in the fast development of urban rail transit. According to the
publication of China Association of Metros, more than ten
thousand kilometers of urban rail transit lines, or a total of
10,291.95 km in details, were in operation in 55 cities across
Mainland China in 2022. A total length of 1,085.17 km of new and
operating urban rail transit lines were added during 2022, with
a total of 25 new and operating lines added in Mainland China.
The Group also benefited from the accelerated development of
related infrastructure projects as the water pollution problems
became more serious along with the progress of urbanization
and industrialization, which has further increased the demand
for urban sewage treatment. According to statistics, more than
3,400 centralized sewage treatment facilities were built in more
than 2,700 industrial parks across China in 2022. The expedited
development of the overall demand side of sewage treatment
has, in turn, driven the increasing demand for the construction
and improvement of supporting facilities for sewage treatment.
The Group was committed to providing diversified services and
customized solutions for various infrastructure construction
and municipal construction projects, including intelligent power
solutions to buildings, rail transit, sewage treatment and different
types of transportation hub projects. With the rapid development
of China’s key and strongly supported infrastructure projects
such as rail transit and sewage treatment, the Group's business
development potential is expected to continue to be unleashed.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)
FREHRE @

During the year, the Group customized its intelligent, energy-
conserving and highly efficient system solutions and provided
long-term maintenance and consultancy services and related
products according to the customer needs, which were widely
recognized in the market. The Group’s clients included a number
of top Fortune Global 500 companies as well as domestic and
foreign large enterprises, with which a long-term and stable
relationship was mutually developed. Thanks to the continuous
provision of quality and reliable products and services, the Group
has a sound brand reputation in the industry and has been able
to secure continuous cooperation with a range of domestic
leading telecommunications and data centre operators, resulting
in a leading position in terms of high-end market share.

Regarding the overseas market, the bidding and implementation
of overseas projects and the progress of infrastructure
construction of the Group were affected by factors such as the
resurging pandemic and supply chain disruptions during the year.
Despite the challenges, the Group has been prudent in planning
for its overseas business presence, maintaining the stable
development of its various overseas branches while actively
capitalizing on the recovery momentum of overseas market by
providing high-end power distribution products and services to
customers in Europe and other overseas countries to capture
further share in the high-end overseas market, thus contributing
to the continued growth of the Group's earnings from the
overseas market.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)
FE®RE @

During the past year, the global economic development
continued to be affected by multiple factors such as the
pandemic, inflation and intensifying geopolitical conflicts.
Nonetheless, the Group made timely adjustments to its operation
strategies, tightened control over costs and expenses, enhanced
innovation and research and development, and continued
to consolidate its strength and leading position in the power
distribution management industry, thus achieving steady growth
in results. Looking ahead to 2023, as the pandemic impact will
wane and the overseas markets will continue to recover, and
after relaxing China's pandemic control measures generally,
attention will return to economic development and the launch
of a series of economic stimulus policies will accelerate the
recovery of the domestic economy. The Group will actively seize
the development opportunities to be presented by the recovery
of the domestic and overseas markets, strengthen its plan of
developing business presence, and closely follow the national
policies in a bid to fully exploit the development opportunities
arising from the industries such as intelligent power grid and
power grid distribution, communication and data centres, rail
transit and wastewater treatment leveraging the trend of China’s
vigorous development and construction of new infrastructures. At
the same time, the Group will be bold in striving to secure more
new customer bases and innovating by improving its technology
and product quality continuously to further strengthen the core
competitiveness and profitability of the Group. In addition, the
Group will continue to review its risk management capabilities,
optimize the quality of its assets, strengthen cost control, reduce
liabilities and maintain financial stability to lay a solid foundation
for the sustainable development of the Group.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my most
sincere gratitude to every single staff of Boer who has shown
perseverance and diligence in the face of adversity during
the outbreak of the pandemic. | would also like to extend my
gratitude to our shareholders, investors, long-term customers
and business partners for their continual devotion and consistent
support. We will continue to adhere to our initial vision, uphold the
pragmatic operation approach in active pursuit of development
and deliver actual results to reward the trust of all of you.

Qian Yixiang
Chairman

27 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWR 7 Hh

MARKET REVIEW

In 2022, the global economy faced pressures from intensifying
geopolitical conflicts, resurgences of the COVID-19 pandemic
and the upward inflationary pressure around the world. Against
this backdrop, central banks started the rate hike cycle and
accelerated monetary policy tightening, which further dampened
economic and consumption recovery. Given the adversities in
the domestic and international landscape, China maintained
general stability in the macroeconomy by stepping up its
macroeconomic control policies to actively navigate through the
shock of unexpected factors. According to the statistics from the
National Bureau of Statistics, China’s gross domestic product
surpassed market expectations and exceeded RMB120 trillion
in 2022, representing an increase of 3.0% year-on-year. The
fixed asset investment in China (excluding farmers) amounted
to approximately RMB57.2 trillion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 5.1%. Meanwhile, China rolled out policy-based
development financial instruments and local special bonds at
a faster pace. In 2022, infrastructure investment increased by
9.4% year-on-year, marking the eighth consecutive month of
accelerating growth. Amidst the slowing trend in recent years,
this was the first time the growth rate rebounded since the end of
double-digit growth in 2018, which indicated that China has been
increasing its investment in infrastructure construction.

Currently, the sustained momentum of digital economic
development is driving the high-quality growth of the power
industry. Globally, the adoption of 5G, the Internet of Things,
artificial intelligence and cloud computing technology facilitates
a new round of technological revolution and industrial reform.
Data technology becomes more important as a key factor of
production. Due to its wide adoption in all areas of the society
and the economy, it will be the new focus of competition among
countries. Over the past few years, China has made huge
progress in developing the digital economy, and expanded
the scope of industrial digitalization. Leveraging the innovative
applications of digital technology, it has come up with a plethora
of new business practices and models. As stated in the Jointly
Build a Community with a Shared Future in Cyberspace
Whitepaper issued by the State Council Information Office, China
has maintained its No.2 position in terms of the scale of the
digital economy for many years, and the digital economy has
become a major engine for economic growth. Since data centres
are important infrastructure for the digital economy, the sector is
also increasingly developed. According to the National Guidelines
for the Application and Development of Data Centres by the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, the number of
data centre racks in China will reach 7.59 million in 2025 and
total energy consumption will amount to 350 billion kWh. Energy
consumption will increase along with the expanding overall scale
of the data centre industry. Given that China is expediting the
development of a green and low-carbon economy, the intelligent
power transmission and distribution equipment and system
market will gain more room for growth.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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In terms of social demand, the electricity demand of the entire
society continued to grow fast, which sped up power grid
investment and the optimization of resource allocation. According
to the 2022 China Power Development Report published by a
Chinese research institute, China is expected to maintain the
growth in its rigid power demand for the next three years. Thus,
the reliable supply of power will provide an important safeguard
to normal business operations across all sectors. In 2022, the
electricity consumption of the entire society reached 8.6 trillion
kWh, representing an increase of 3.6% year-on-year. In view
of the rising power demand, power grid companies actively
explored and pushed forward the construction and investment of
power systems. According to statistics, the basic infrastructure
investment for power grids in China remained on the growth track
in 2022 and increased by 1.23% year-on-year to RMB501.2
billion. During the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, it is estimated
that China Southern Power Grid Co., Ltd. (“Southern Grid”)
invested over RMB26 billion in total for its digitalization plan.
These investments helped promote digitalization transformation
and the sustainable development of digital power grids, thereby
facilitating the transformation and upgrade towards safe, reliable,
green, efficient and intelligent power grids. The growing demand
for power and the construction of power systems will bring
enormous business opportunities to the power distribution sector
and to the business growth of the Group.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, global economic recovery was slow due to the serious
impacts on commodity prices and supply chains imposed by
the pandemic and geopolitical conflicts. The resurgence of the
pandemic across China also brought challenges to the Group’s
operation. In the face of the uncertain market environment, the
Group timely assessed and adjusted its business strategies to
incorporate the concepts of refined management and efficient
development in all the processes of production, manufacturing
and operation. With the ongoing enhancement of business
management and overall efficiency, the Group maintained smooth
operations by minimizing the loss in the supply chain caused by
the pandemic. Furthermore, the Group continued to give full play
1o its leading economies of scale and superior technology, so as
to boost price and service competitiveness. Leveraging years of
industry experience and the huge clientele in the communication
data centre, rail transit and municipal construction sectors, the
Group performed well against the weakening economy and
consumption during the year. In 2022, the Group registered an
increase in sales and recorded a revenue of RMB626.6 million
(2021: RMB572.6 million), representing a year-on-year increase
of 9.4%. During the year, supply chains were under pandemic-
imposed pressure which led to higher production costs. The
gross profit margin of the Group fell from the previous year but
remained high at 29.2% (2021: 33.5%), while gross profit for
the year reached RMB183.1 million. Benefitting from the solid
foundation for efficient operation this year, the Group’s profit from
operations, profit before taxation and profit for the year amounted
to RMB59.8 million (2021: RMB124.1 million), RMB32.1 million
(2021: RMB96.7 million) and RMB30.1 million (2021: RMB12.5
million) respectively. The Group’s profit for the year grew by
141.5%. Excluding the one-off gain of RMB94.0 million from the
disposal of certain subsidiaries of the Group in 2021, the Group’s
profit from operations and profit before taxation increased by
98.7% and 1,101.8% year-on-year respectively.

Facing the complex and volatile economic environment, the
Group continued to maintain high corporate governance
standards to ensure healthy and sustainable development.
Apart from further strengthening risk management capability, it
exercised tight control on the size of debt and attached great
importance to the health of cash flow. During the year, the Group
continued to implement a stringent internal control system. It
strictly monitored and managed its current assets and liabilities,
while keeping its trade receivables and inventory at a sound level.
Besides, the Group optimised the debt structure on an ongoing
basis, maintained debt and finance costs at a stable level and
further improved the gearing structure, thereby generating
positive operating cash flows for seven consecutive years.
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During the year, the business of the Group can be divided into
the following two major segments:

— Intelligent Power Integrated Management Solutions (“IEM
Solutions”); and

— Components and Spare Parts (“CSP”) Business (“CSP
Business”).

The double carbon goal proposed higher requirements
for the development of the power market and accelerated
the transformation of the power industry in China. In 2022,
the National Development and Reform Commission of the
People’s Republic of China (“NDRC”) and the National
Energy Administration jointly issued the Guiding Opinions on
Accelerating the Construction of a National Unified Power Market
System, which centred around the market-oriented reform and
transformation of the power industry. Looking forward, the
marketization of power trading will facilitate the transition of the
market towards virtual power plants, demand response and the
integration of power source, grid, load and storage. In addition,
Southern Grid has stated that it would support the establishment
of the new energy system with the new power system as one
of its targets in 20283. It would also expedite the digital and
intelligent transformation of power grids, built a new energy
mechanism to fit the new system, and promoted the green and
low-carbon mode of production and lifestyle. Keeping abreast of
the government’s policy direction, the Group focused on modern
communication and Internet technology. Through its own “Cloud
Smart” big data platform, it developed one-stop IEM Solutions,
which included hardware integrated systems, customised
operating systems and software as well as products and services
for online and offline operation and maintenance management.
These solutions helped customers achieve intelligent power
distribution and power consumption, so that they could enhance
performance management capabilities. For the purposes of
data collection and two-way transmission, the Group ensured
the safe operation of equipment and improved efficiency with
superior technology. At the same time, it monitored electrical
terminal equipment through the Internet around the clock. As
an industry-leading service provider with more than 35 years of
extensive experience in the sector, the Group has prominent first-
mover advantages and increasing competitive edges in providing
customers with almost unique one-stop IEM Solutions in the
industry. Over the years, the Group has gained in-depth technical
expertise in intelligent power management. Recently, the
Group has committed to strengthening the power consumption
database for various industries and yielded remarkable results.
While offering safe and reliable intelligent power distribution
services, the Group also strives to control operating costs in a
bid to create real commercial value and benefits for customers.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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In recent years, the modes of production and business in
the conventional economy have changed fundamentally and
all industries have undergone digital transformation driven
by continuous breakthroughs in new technology, including
artificial intelligence, cloud computing, big data and blockchain.
Moreover, full policy support has been given to promote the
digital economy. The steadfast construction of digital China
and the speeding up of digitalization have become national
priorities in the 14th Five-Year Plan, which has boosted the
development of the digital-economy industry. As the vehicle
of computing power for data processing, data centres are the
key infrastructure in digital transformation and development.
According to the statistics of the China Academy of Information
and Communications Technology, power consumption of data
centres in China will exceed 380 billion kWh in 2030, and the
scales of data centres and total energy consumption will further
increase. Over the years, the Group has intensely developed the
power distribution market for data centres. It actively analyses
customer needs and continues to optimise power distribution
technology to seek innovative breakthroughs. With an acute
sense of market demand and years of industry experience, the
Group has attracted numerous target customers in the data
centre industry. It is expected that the increase in the scale of
data centres will create more room for business development.

The Report to the 20th National Congress of the Communist
Party specifically proposed to accelerate the construction of
national strength in transportation and incorporate the national
strength in transportation into modernized industries and
systems. With the supporting policies successively launched by
the central and local governments, the rail transit industry has
entered a new stage of development. Against the backdrop of
the “double carbon” goal, the Chinese government has attached
great importance to the development of urban rail transit.
According to the statistics published by the China Association
of Metros, a total of over 10,000 kilometers of urban rail transit
lines were in operation in 55 cities across Mainland China
as of 31 December 2022, reaching 10,291.95 kilometers. In
2022, a total of 1,085.17 kilometers of new urban rail transit
operating lines were added, with a total of 25 operating lines
newly added in Mainland China. In addition, in terms of urban
sewage treatment, the Ministry of Ecology and Environment
of the People’s Republic of China pushed forward the reform
of sewage outlet management in 2022, and incorporated 19
cities into the first batch of pilot projects for reclaimed water
recycling, while expeditiously making up for the inadequacy in
urban sewage collection and treatment facilities, with more than
3,400 centralised sewage treatment facilities established in over
2,700 industrial parks nationwide. The continuous expansion
of the sewage treatment market size, coupled with the ongoing
promotion of policies, has further opened up the room for
development. Recently, the Plan for Urban Sewage Treatment
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and Recycling Development for the 14th Five-Year Plan
(TR KEERERIEAAERERED) expressly
stipulated that the direct discharge of domestic sewage and the
shortfall of collection and treatment facilities shall be substantially
eliminated in urban built-up areas, and at least 70% of domestic
sewage shall be collected in a centralised manner for all cities by
2025. The Group was committed to providing diversified services
and customised solutions for various infrastructure construction
and municipal construction projects, including intelligent power
management solutions to buildings, rail transit, sewage treatment
and different types of transportation hub projects. Driven by
the favourable national policies, the Group has received strong
support for the business in infrastructure projects such as rail
transit and sewage treatment, which has also exerted a positive
impact on its profitability.

During the year, the Group ranked top in terms of market share
in the high-end markets, and a number of Top 500 companies in
the world and large-scale international enterprises both at home
and abroad were long-term customers who have developed
stable and long-term relationship with the Group. Adhering to
the philosophy of providing reliable quality products and services
for a long time, the Group has been customising intelligent,
energy conserving and highly efficient system solutions based
on customer demand, and offered long-term maintenance and
consultancy services and relevant products, which were widely
recognized by the market. During the year, the Group recorded a
steady income growth in its business due to the gradual increase
in orders from long-term large — and medium-sized customers. In
addition, the continuous cooperation with a number of domestic
leading companies in the communication and data centre
operation sectors enabled the Group to garner a well-established
presence and gain sound brand reputation in the industry.

Regarding the overseas market, with the resurgence of
the pandemic worldwide and uncertainties in its business
environment, the Group has adopted a cautious approach by
comprehensively considering various risks and carrying out
prudent planning for the business presence and development
in overseas. Its overseas branches saw steady development
during the year. Meanwhile, actively seizing the opportunities
arising from the recovery of certain markets around the globe,
the Group leveraged its existing global sales network to provide
high-end power distribution products and services for customers
in Europe and other overseas countries, thereby contributing a
steady income stream to the Group. Looking ahead, the Group’s
earnings from the overseas market are expected to continue to
recover as the world opens up from the pandemic.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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During the year, on the basis of its leading technological
advantages in the field of power-related cloud data platforms, the
Group devoted considerable efforts in innovative research and
development. In order to expedite the development of intelligent
power management, the Group ramped up its investments and
allocated more resources to optimize “Cloud+” services and full-
cycle offerings of the Group, including its operational efficiency
and operating system, on an ongoing basis, with an aim to
achieve its vision of “providing high-end customised intelligent
and energy-saving power management solutions for customers
from different industries”.

PROSPECT

Looking back at 2022, the recovery of the global economy
was sluggish due to factors such as the COVID-19 pandemic,
geopolitics and rising interest rates. Nonetheless, with the
full reopening of all countries around the world, the global
economy has gradually shaken off the post-pandemic impact
and accelerated its recovery. As stated in the latest World
Economic Outlook ({4 R LM E)) published by the
International Monetary Fund (the “IMF”), the global GDP growth
forecast for 2023 has been raised to 2.9% (a forecast of 2.7%
in October), with a positive trend for the future economy. The
IMF specifically stated that factors such as China’s optimized
adjustment to pandemic prevention policies will improve the
prospects of the Chinese and global economic growth, and the
Chinese economy is expected to grow by 5.2% in 2023, which
is 0.8 percentage points higher than the previous forecast. As
the Chinese government optimizes its pandemic prevention
policies and adopts favourable economic measures, the Group’s
performance is expected to benefit from the accelerated recovery
of the Chinese economy. Looking into 2023, the Group is
confident about the growth potential of the industry and market
where it operates. Fully seizing the development opportunities
arising from China’s economic recovery, the Group will leverage
its professional experience of more than 35 years in the industry,
and strive to enhance its core competitiveness, with a view to
achieving sustainable growth in its revenue and profit.
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The Report to the 20th National Congress of the Communist
Party proposes to accelerate the development of digital
economy, promote the in-depth integration of digital economy
and real economy, and develop a digital industry cluster with
international competitiveness. As the base of the digital economic
infrastructures, data centres are highly valued by the country. The
“14th Five-Year Plan” and the outline of the 2035 Vision propose
to expedite the construction of a nationwide integrated big
data centre system, strengthen the co-ordination of computing
capacity and intelligent distribution, and develop certain national
hubs and clusters of big data centres. The continued launch
of favourable policies will bring broader prospects for the
development of digital centre industry. According to a report on
the mega data centre market published by Synergy Research
Group, a market research firm, there are currently 314 known
new hyperscale data centres and the installed base of operational
data centres will pass the 1,000 mark in three years’ time and
continue growing rapidly thereafter. The digital centre industry will
accordingly benefit from this and further gain more opportunities
for development. Leveraging its technological strengths, the
Group will embrace the opportunities presented by the digital
economy. Based on the “Cloud Smart” big data platform, it will
develop the one-stop IEM Solutions for customers, enabling
customers to upgrade their intelligent power distribution and
power consumption level with increased efficiency at lower cost.
Driven by the fast development of the data centre industry, the
Group’s business will continue to grow rapidly and its position
as the leading service provider in the industry will be further
consolidated.

In recent years, China’s urbanization process has accelerated
significantly and the scale of cities has continued to expand.
The increasingly close ties between large domestic cities and
their peripheral areas have boosted the rapid development of
urban rail transport. According to the 14th Five-Year Plan for
Modern Comprehensive Transportation System Development
(TtTHRI BRGEAXBERBRERRE)), urban rail
transport will gradually evolve from development-focused to
both development — and operation-focused, and the operating
mileage of urban rail transit will be increased to 10,000 km by
2025, representing an average increase of 680 km each year. In
terms of urban wastewater treatment, the Implementation Plan
on Promoting the Construction and Management of Domestic
Sewage and Garbage Treatment Facilities in Established Town
(CRARHEER S EA R SR BEEREERNEENER
J72)) promulgated by the National Development and Reform
Commission specifies that by 2025, the domestic sewage and
garbage treatment capacity in the built-up areas of established
towns will be significantly enhanced; and by 2035, the full
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coverage of domestic sewage collection and treatment capacity
and domestic garbage collection and treatment in the built-
up areas of established towns will be basically accomplished.
China’s ever-increasing support and investment in new
infrastructure projects will be able to facilitate the Group’s
business development in various areas, including the rail transit
and waste water treatment sectors.

Under the influence of economic development, the increase in
the proportion of new energy installations and structural changes
in electricity load, there is a growing demand for upgrading and
renovating power grid infrastructure, prompting China to increase
investment in power grids and promote the development of new
power systems. The State Grid Corporation of China (“State
Grid”) plans to increase its investment in power grids in 2023 to
give full play to its role as a driving force for the economy and
society, with investment in power grids set to exceed RMB520
billion, representing a new record high and year-on-year increase
of approximately 4%. During the “14th Five-Year Plan” period,
the planned average annual investment of State Grid will be
no less than RMB500 billion, of which RMB2.4 trillion will be
invested in power grids to vigorously promote the construction
of new energy supply and consumption systems; and the
total planned investment in the southern grid will be RMB670
billion, representing an increase of 51% as compared to that
of the “13th Five-Year Plan”. The total planned investment of
Southern Grid is approximately RMB670 billion, representing
an increase of 51% as compared to that of the “13th Five-Year
Plan”, among which, construction of power distribution grids is
the key investment area, with planned investment amounting
to RMB320 billion or accounting for approximately 48% of the
total. Driven by the national policy of increasing investment in
power grid construction, the expansion of the entire power grid
industry chain has been accelerated. In addition, the Report to
the 20th National Congress of the Communist Party indicated
that the country should actively and steadily promote the goal of
fulfilling carbon peak and carbon neutrality, and accelerate the
planning and construction of new energy systems; in the future,
the construction of power grids will continue to be oriented
with the integrated development path of “large power grids +
decentralized smart grids”, while the investment structure will
incline towards extra-high voltage, intelligence and digitalisation
at a faster pace. With the Group’s first-mover advantage and
extensive experience in the development and planning of the
smart grid market, coupled with the national policy support for
new power systems, the Group’s smart power management
system solution services business is expected to embrace strong
growth in the future.
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With the launch of China’s energy saving and emission reduction
policies, the national and local governments have attached
great importance to the new energy vehicle industry, promoting
the rapid expansion of the market scale of the new energy
vehicle industry. According to the latest statistics from the China
Association of Automobile Manufacturers (CAAM), China’s new
energy vehicles continued to grow explosively in 2022, with
production and sales amounting to 7.058 million units and 6.887
million units respectively, up 96.9% and 93.4% year-on-year,
remaining the world’s No.1 for eight consecutive years. Against
the backdrop of the rapid development of the new energy vehicle
industry stimulating the accelerated development of charging
infrastructure, the Group will make full use of its well-established
pipelines of ancillary power products for new energy vehicles and
increase its investment in the development of related segments in
an effort to increase its market share.

The Group will continue to devote considerable efforts to
exploring the intelligent power management sector. With its
strong brand strength and industry-leading technological edge,
the Group has accumulated a large number of stable customers
over the years, including many Top 500 companies in the world,
domestic and international large enterprises, and has established
long-term and stable relationship of cooperation. As the
pandemic impact wanes and the market continues to recover,
bidding activities are set to resume. The Group will be responsive
to market changes, actively participate in project bidding,
continue to improve its technology and make good use of its
own “Cloud Smart” big data platform to enhance the stickiness
of existing customers while striving to develop more high-value
customers and further expand its business scale.

Looking ahead to 2023, there remains a number of global risk
factors, but the haze of the pandemic is fading and China’s
economy will continue to grow steadily against the backdrop of
a general opening up and economic stimulus policies launched.
As the economic outlook improves, the Group will actively seize
the development opportunities arising from various favourable
policies on industries such as intelligent power grid and power
grid distribution, communication and data centres, rail transit and
wastewater treatment, fully deploy its strengths, continuously
strengthen its technology, product and service highlights,
enhance its competitiveness in areas such as intelligent power
management and consolidate the resilience of the Group for
development. At the same time, the Group will further enhance
its risk identification capabilities, operate prudently, strictly control
operating costs and adopt appropriate strategies to mitigate
downside risks. By continuously optimizing its debt structure and
maintaining a healthy cash flow, the Group will promote the long-
term development and create sustainable value and returns for
shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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OPERATION AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

During the year, the business of the Group can be divided into
the following two segments:

IEM Solutions

Based on modern communication and Internet technology
and relying on its “Cloud Smart” big data platform, the Group
provides its customers with one-stop intelligent electrical
integrated management solutions for the products and services
such as intelligent hardware integrated systems, customised
operating systems and software, intelligent power consumption
and energy efficiency management system, new energy power
generation and sales of electricity solutions, as well as online and
offline operation and maintenance management, thereby ensuring
safe, highly efficient and energy-saving power consumption of
customers and hence maximising the economic benefits of their
power consumption.

The revenue of IEM Solutions segment of the Group for the
year was RMB448.9 million (2021: RMB409.2 million), which
accounted for 71.6% (2021: 71.5%) of the Group’s total revenue
for the year. The revenue of IEM Solutions segment recorded an
increase of 9.7% as compared to the same period in 2021, while
the gross profit of this business segment was RMB135.8 million
(2021: RMB148.5 million), representing a decrease of 8.6% as
compared to the same period in 2021.

The gross profit margin of IEM Solutions segment decreased
from 36.3% in 2021 to 30.2% for the year. The decrease
was mainly due to the strict pandemic control and lockdown
measures as a result of the resurgence of the pandemic in
Eastern China during the year, which lead to an increase in the
supply chain costs.

CSP Business

The Group also manufactures components and spare parts
for application on electrical distribution equipment or the basic
function units of the solutions and sells such components and
spare parts to its customers. Their functions can only be realised
through the system or connecting with other hardware.

According to the differences of applications, CSP Business can
be further classified into the below categories:

— Special CSP: the custom-made parts ordered by the
Group’s long-term customers; and

— Standard CSP: the general parts and components being
sold by the Group.
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The revenue of CSP Business segment of the Group for the
year was RMB177.7 million (2021: RMB163.4 million), which
accounted for 28.4% (2021: 28.5%) of the Group’s total revenue
for the year. The increase in the revenue of CSP Business
segment for the year was 8.7% as compared to the same
period in 2021. The gross profit of CSP Business segment
was RMB47.3 million (2021: RMB43.5 million), representing an
increase of 8.7% as compared to the same period in 2021.

The gross profit margin of CSP Business segment was 26.6%
(2021: 26.6%).

Other net income/loss

Other net income/loss mainly includes interest income from
financial institutions, government grants and gain on disposal of
property, plant and equipment. The Group recorded other net
gain of RMB17.3 million (2021: other net loss of RMB5.1 million)
for the year, which was mainly attributable to the increase in
interest income from financial institutions.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consist of mainly staff costs,
transportation fees, travelling expenses and other miscellaneous
expenses. During the year, selling and distribution expenses
were RMB58.5 million (2021: RMB71.5 million), representing a
decrease of RMB13.0 million or 18.1% as compared to that of
2021. The decrease in selling and distribution expenses was
mainly due to the implementation of cost control measures by
the Group during the year. Selling and distribution expenses
accounted for 9.3% of the revenue for the year (2021: 12.5%).

Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses mainly comprised
of staff costs, office expenses, depreciation and amortisation
charges and other miscellaneous expenses. Administrative and
other operating expenses for the year amounted to RMB80.9
million (2021: RMB80.3 million), representing an increase of
RMBO0.6 million as compared to that of 2021. Administrative and
other operating expenses accounted for 12.9% of the revenue
the year (2021: 14.0%).

Finance costs

During the year, the Group’s finance costs were RMB27.7 million
(2021: RMB27.4 million). Finance costs include interest on
borrowings mainly denominated in RMB.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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Income tax expense

During the year, the Group’s income tax expense was RMB2.0
million (2021: RMB84.2 million), representing a decrease of
RMB82.2 million as compared to that of 2021. The decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in reversal of deferred tax assets
made during the year.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year was RMB30.1 million (2021: RMB12.5 million).
The increase in profit was mainly due to the increase in revenue
and the implementation of cost control measures by the Group
during the year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the total assets of the Group were
RMB1,375.1 million (31 December 2021: RMB1,331.0 million)
and the total liabilities were RMB1,085.9 million (31 December
2021: RMB1,063.7 million). As at 31 December 2022, the
total equity of the Group amounted to RMB289.3 million (31
December 2021: RMB267.4 million).

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables, amounts due to related
parties and borrowings. As at 31 December 2022, the cash
and cash equivalents, net current assets and total assets less
current liabilities were RMB59.8 million (31 December 2021:
RMB77.7 million), RMB107.2 million (31 December 2021:
RMB69.4 million) and RMB502.6 million (31 December 2021:
RMB434.1 million) respectively. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group had borrowings amounting to RMB437.7 million (31
December 2021: RMB508.1 million). Borrowings were repayable
within five years with effective interest rates ranging from 1.5%
to 4.79% per annum (31 December 2021: range from 1.5% to
4.65% per annum). Cash and cash equivalents and borrowings
were denominated mainly in RMB. The Group’s gearing ratio,
which was expressed as a ratio of total borrowings over total
equity, was 151.3% as at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: 190.0%). The decrease in gearing ratio was mainly due to
decrease in total borrowing and increase in total equity.
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CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, certain borrowings were secured by
buildings of RMB64.9 million (31 December 2021: RMB32.7
million), prepaid leasehold land of RMB28.0 million (31 December
2021: RMB24.0 million) and pledged deposits of RMB170.0
million (831 December 2021: RMB150.0 million).

ASSETS/LIABILITIES TURNOVER RATIO

The average inventory turnover days decreased by 21 days from
139 days for the year ended 31 December 2021 to 118 days for
the year mainly due to the decrease in inventories. The average
trade receivables turnover days decreased by 15 days from 350
days for the year ended 31 December 2021 to 335 days for the
year mainly due to the increase in revenue. The average trade
payables turnover days increased by 65 days from 372 days
for the year ended 31 December 2021 to 437 days for the year
mainly due to increasing use of bills payable.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in the PRC, the
Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in RMB, which is
not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange
transactions involving RMB must take place through the PRC or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rates adopted for the foreign exchange transactions
are the rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China
that are determined largely by supply and demand.

The Group currently does not have a policy on foreign currency
risk as it had minimal export sales and the impact of foreign
currency risk on the Group’s total sales is minimal.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at 31
December 2022 are as follows:

Location

e B

Shenlong Road, Longhu Industrial Park,

g*ﬁ;’ﬂik&‘ﬁ CEARBEEEREE
b1

RZBZ—F+-A=+—R AEEKREY
EHFHBT -

Economic Development Zone, Huaibei City, Anhui Province, the PRC

B WAL T B R B R TR E AR e

Jiaxing Sweater Raw Materials Trading Market, Honghe Town,
Xiuzhou District, Jiaxing City, Zhe'iang Province, the PRC
HENTIERETAMERAEREECRBHRZ TS

Yiwu International Commodity City, Zhangian Road,
Xianghe Town, Quanjiao County, Anhui Province, the PRC
A 2GR R AT S S EER /N g mik

Health East Street, Weifang City, Shandong Province, the PRC
BB M TR R

Tianyu Yipin, Wulihe Road, Chengnan District,
Mengcheng County, Anhui Province, the PRC
B2 A SRR R RO B KM —an

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant
investment held or material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital
assets as of 31 December 2022.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had 659 (31 December 2021: 703) employees as
at 31 December 2022. The total staff costs for the year were
RMB85.4 million (2021: RMB83.1 million). The remuneration
policy was in line with the current legislation in the relevant
jurisdictions, market conditions and performance of the staff and
the Group.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
—ZT - 4437 Annual Report 2022

Term of lease Use
HEFH ke
Medium-term lease Factories
hHEIEE Bz
Medium-term lease Shops
hHEIEE FE
Medium-term lease Shops
hHEIHE Sk
Medium-term lease Shops
REIESE a4
Medium-term lease Residential
o HIFA g

BEXPHEE  FR AKREYEREEX
BRENETEMNMBAR  BERARAMAEDR
RZBERRBMEESRE -

EARESBAEXEE 25T E

REZF-_F+-_A=1+—"R AKEAUEE
REBRESBABRNEEZFE -

EERFMER
R-ZE-—F+-_A=+—8  ~AEEHEE659
HEB(ZEZ—F+ZH=1T—H :7034) °
FA - BREINABARESSIFETL(ZF
——F: ARS8 1BERL) - HIMBERRFFAH
el EERmIRITEN - MAUKRE TRARE
ErRIR -



EEEFWRE D

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group believes that employees are important assets and
their contribution and support are valued at all times. The
Group provides competitive remuneration packages and share
award scheme to attract and retain employees with the aim
to form a professional staff and management team that can
bring the Group to new levels of success. The Group regularly
reviews compensation and benefit policies according to industry
benchmark, financial results as well as the individual performance
of employees. Furthermore, the Group places great emphasis on
the training and development of employees and regards excellent
employees as a key factor in its competitiveness.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

1.

Market risks

The Group is exposed to certain market risks such as
interest rate risk, credit risk (including the risk to be borne by
the Group in the event of default of payment by customers),
liquidity risk, etc. The details are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

Commercial risks

The Group is facing various competition by multinational
companies in the same industry, and also finds that an
increasing number of domestic competitors enter the high-
end markets. To maintain the Group’s competitiveness,
the management uses cost leadership strategy as well
as diversifying its business strategies to tackle other
competitors.

Operational risks

The Group’s operations require a certain number of
government approvals and are subject to a broad range of
laws and regulations governing various matters. In particular,
the continuance of the Group’s operations depends upon
compliance with applicable environmental, health and safety
and other regulations. The Group has already employed
external legal consultant and business adviser and will ensure
timely approvals by relevant government departments.

Loss of key individuals or the inability to attract
and retain talents

Lack of appropriately skilled and experienced human
resource could result in a delay in achieving the Group’s
strategic goals. The risk of the loss of key personnel is
mitigated by regular reviews of recruitment and retention
practices, remuneration packages, share award scheme and
succession planning within the management team.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)

EIREAE

AEEMEREDESEE - M AEARERE
ERMPANERMNSE - ARER‘ABRFN
ZEHMEE R ZR BT E RS MR E
8 BRBREXNEINEREE - K
SEERIES - ARBERBEEARER - 2R
BRERNE T2 RRER R EE 2 FH MK
R e b AEE 2 ERE B #F )0 %
R’ UBEFRESEBRFINERER

FERBNTAEERE

1. HiEER
REEASTHERRAR - EERR(BERF
TGN T AREBERAERR)  REE
TRBEETH SRR - FBHRTBHR
EHIFE26 o

2. BERR

AEBEIESHEZRAEXERRARNGES
R IR R MRS B3 8 F 2 P
ABBEEEMIHRAE - BRFAKEN
FH o BEERBKAR R ER
LI L BRI L LM E FHmF -

3. HERRK

AEENZERTE - EHENBFHBMM
- WRET BEZHERMERE R KA
EEMNEE - LHER AEERENEE
HEUARETERNRRE  RENRZESE
BE - AEECERINEDERBRERITE
B SRREERESAREBUT RPN
BUAE

4. BRAVRRIEEZWRSIRBEAT

RZEERMMEELBOANER 7]
BEEMHEAKEERREBR - KERA
BREMBE AT ML - FMEE - IR)
REEMEEEBR AR EEEIEET
FASABIRKHER

BEESHEZERERLDT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2022 —Z2 = — 44

25



26

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability throughout
its business operations. As a responsible corporation, the Group
strives to ensure minimal environmental impacts by carefully
managing our energy consumption and water usage level,
including the establishment of self-distributed photovoltaic power
plants and other initiatives.

The Group promotes environmental protection by raising the
employees’ awareness of resources saving and efficient use
of energy. In recent years, the Group has implemented several
policies to encourage employees for saving energy. All these
policies aim at reducing resources consumption and saving costs
which are beneficial to the environment and meet the commercial
goals of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group values mutually beneficial long standing relationships
with its suppliers and customers. The Group aims at delivering
high quality products and solutions to its customers and
developing mutual trust among its suppliers.

The Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with
customers has been one of the critical reasons for the Group’s
success. The business model of the Group with regards to the
business is to maintain and strengthen on strong relationships
within our client base. The Group’s mission is to provide the
finest products and solutions to the customers. The Group is
constantly looking at ways to improve customer relations through
enhanced services. Through the above approaches, the Group
hopes to increase the volume of business from the existing
customers and the reach for new potential clients.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Board places emphasis on the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
External legal advisers are engaged to ensure transactions and
businesses performed by the Group are within the applicable law
framework. Updates on applicable laws, rules and regulations
are brought to the attention of relevant employees and operation
units from time to time. The Group continues to commit to
comply with the relevant laws and regulations such as the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), and other applicable laws and
regulations. Based on information available, the Directors take
the view that during the year, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the operations of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFEREREHEEE

The Directors’ updated information is set out below. Upon
specific enquiry by the Company and confirmations from
Directors, save as otherwise set out in this report, there is
no change in the information of the Directors required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since
the Company published the last interim report.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
QIAN Yixiang

QIAN Yixiang, aged 49, is an Executive Director, the Chairman
of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. Qian Yixiang was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 12 February 2010 and as a member of
the Company’s Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee on 30 September 2010. Mr. Qian Yixiang is also the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Qian Yixiang
is mainly responsible for overseeing the factory operations in
the PRC subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Qian Yixiang joined Wuxi
Boer Power Instrumentation Company Ltd. (“Wuxi Boer”), the
predecessor entity of the Group, in July 1995 and became the
General Manager of Wuxi Boer in January 1998. Since he first
joined Wuxi Boer in July 1995, Mr. Qian Yixiang has acquired
knowledge and experience about the electrical distribution
systems and the electrical distribution equipment industry. Mr.
Qian Yixiang graduated from Jiangnan University with a Diploma
in Business Management in 1995. Mr. Qian Yixiang is the
husband of Ms. Jia Lingxia and the son of Mr. Qian Zhongming.

JIA Lingxia

JIA Lingxia (“Ms. Jia”), aged 49, is an Executive Director and the
Chief Operating Officer of the Company. Ms. Jia was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 12 February 2010
and as a member of the Company’s Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee on 30 September 2010. Ms. Jia is
also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms.
Jia is mainly responsible for overseeing the sales and marketing
operation of the Group. Ms. Jia joined Wuxi Boer in August
1995 and became the Deputy General Manager of Wuxi Boer
in January 1997. From February 1995 to August 1995, Ms. Jia
worked at Wuxi Special Ventilation Machine Factory, currently
known as Wuxi Xishan Special Ventilation Machine Factory,
as the head of the accounts department. Since Ms. Jia joined
Wuxi Boer in August 1995, she has acquired knowledge and
experience about the electrical distribution systems and the
electrical distribution equipment industry. Ms. Jia graduated from
Jiangnan University with a Diploma in Business Management in
1995. Ms. Jia is the wife of Mr. Qian Yixiang and the daughter-in-
law of Mr. Qian Zhongming.
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ZHA Saibin

ZHA Saibin (“Mr. Zha”), aged 56, is an Executive Director and
a Vice President of the Company responsible for new products
development. Mr. Zha was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company on 12 February 2010. Mr. Zha is also the director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zha joined Wuxi
Boer in June 2000 and became the Assistant Manager and the
head of research and development department of Wuxi Boer in
2003. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zha worked at Wuxi City
Apparatus Factory from July 1990 to May 2000 and was later
appointed as the head of research and development and the
Deputy General Manager in January 1996 and November 1997,
respectively. Since joining Wuxi Boer in June 2000, Mr. Zha
has acquired knowledge and experience about the electrical
distribution systems and the electrical distribution equipment
industry. Mr. Zha received a bachelor’'s degree in Engineering in
1990 from Hefei University of Technology.

QIAN Zhongming

QIAN Zhongming, aged 76, is an Executive Director and a Vice
President of the Company responsible for providing advice to
the Board. Mr. Qian Zhongming was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 12 February 2010. As a founding
member of Wuxi Boer, Mr. Qian Zhongming acquired knowledge
and experience about the electrical distribution systems and the
electrical distribution equipment industry over the past 30 years.
Mr. Qian Zhongming graduated from Luoshe Senior High School
in 1966. Mr. Qian Zhongming is the father of Mr. Qian Yixiang
and the father-in-law of Ms. Jia.

YU Wai Ming

YU Wai Ming (“Mr. Yu”), aged 38, is an Executive Director of
the Company responsible for the formulation of the strategic
development plans and management policy of the Group and the
management of the daily operations of the Group. Mr. Yu was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 8 January
2021. Mr. Yu was also appointed by Mr. Zha as his alternate
Director with effect from 8 January 2021. Mr. Yu is also currently
an independent non-executive director of Billion Industrial
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2299).

Mr. Yu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 16 years of experience in
professional accounting and corporate advisory services. Mr.
Yu received a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
(Accounting) from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 2006.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
TANG Jianrong

TANG Jianrong (“Mr. Tang”), aged 59, joined the Board as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 30 September 2010 and
was appointed as a member of the Company’s Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee on 30
September 2010. Mr. Tang is currently a professor in the School
of Business at Jiangnan University. Although the Group has
established a long-term research relationship with Jiangnan
University, Mr. Tang has never been involved in any of the
research and development programmes undertaken by Jiangnan
University for the Group. Neither has Mr. Tang been involved
in the negotiation of any cooperation agreements. Mr. Tang
currently does not receive and has not in the past ever received
any personal benefit from the cooperation relationship between
the Group and Jiangnan University. Mr. Tang currently is not
personally interested in and was not in the past ever personally
interested in such cooperation relationship. He is also currently
an independent director of Wuxi DK Electronic Materials Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 300842), which is listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Tang received a bachelor’s degree in Economics from Hebei
Geology College, currently known as Shijiazhuang University
of Economics, in 1987. He then received a master’s degree in
Economics from Zhongnan University of Economics in 1990. He
received a Doctoral degree in Science from Nanjing University in
2009.
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QU Weimin

QU Weimin (“Mr. Qu”), aged 54, joined the Board as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 1 August 2016 and was
appointed as a member of the Company’s Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee on 1
August 2016. Mr. Qu serves as the Project Director of Beijing
Zhongqging Zhihui New Energy Technology Co., Ltd since
November 2020. From November 2019 to October 2020,
Mr. Qu served as the Equipment Director of Beijing Zhizhong
Rail Transportation Technology Co, Ltd. From January 2019
to October 2019, Mr. Qu was the Chief Engineer of Beijing
Supergreen Technologies Co., Ltd., responsible for the
operation of the company and focusing on the application
of fiberglass spray-on thermal insulation on ships of Chinese
navy. Mr. Qu served as the Chief Representative of Franklin
Fueling Systems Inc., the Beijing Office from January 2008 to
December 2008. From August 2005 to December 2006, Mr.
Qu served as the Deputy General Manager of Wuxi Electrical
Instrument & Power System Factory (currently known as “Wuxi
Boer Power Instrumentation Company Ltd.”). Prior to that, Mr.
Qu worked as the Product Manager of Veeder-Root Petroleum
Equipment (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. between May 2004 and July
2005. For the period from July 1996 to May 2004, Mr. Qu
worked with Schneider Electric (China) Investment Co., Ltd
where he served various positions including Product Marketing
& Strategic Planning Manager of Medium Voltage Activity,
Activity & Franchise Operation Manager of Medium Voltage
Primary Distribution Activity, DV2 Vacuum Circuit Breaker Project
Manager and Franchise Operation Manager of Low Voltage
Distribution Activity. Mr. Qu has over 29 years’ experience in the
power industry.

Mr. Qu obtained a master’s degree in Business Administration
from the City University of Seattle in 2003 and a bachelor’s
degree in Electrical Engineering from Tsinghua University in 1990.
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LAI Wai Leuk

LAl Wai Leuk (“Mr. Lai”), aged 46, joined the Board as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 2 July 2020 and
was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company on 2 July 2020. From May 2000 to January 2004,
Mr. Lai worked at Fung, Yu & Co., Certified Public Accountants.
He also served successively as accountant, assistant manager
and manager of KPMG from January 2004 to October 2009.
Mr. Lai was transferred to KPMG Advisory (China) Limited from
November 2009 to May 2012 and was a senior manager at
the time of leaving. He also served as chief financial officer of
Aujet Industry Limited from May 2012 to August 2013. Mr. Lai
is the chief financial officer, company secretary and one of the
authorised representatives of Billion Industrial Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2299) from October 2013 to July 2021. Mr. Lai was
appointed as a joint company secretary, the alternate authorised
representative and the authorised representative of Wenling
Zhejiang Measuring and Cutting Tools Trading Centre Company
Limited (stock code: 1379) on 26 July 2022. He has more than
21 years of experience in auditing and accounting. Mr. Lai is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a member of CPA Australia and an associate member of The

Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr. Lai received his bachelor’s degree of Commerce majoring
in Accountancy from the University of Wollongong in Australia
in December 1999 and obtained the master of Corporate
Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in

September 2017.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
WU Jianping

WU Jianping (“Mr. Wu Jianping”), aged 44, is the Vice
President of the Group, in charge of domestic sales business
management. Mr. Wu Jianping joined the Group in July 2002
and worked in the marketing department of Boer (Wuxi) Power
System Co., Ltd. (“Boer Wuxi”) from July 2002 to December
2004, he was appointed as the industry manager of Boer Wuxi
sales department in January 2005, and was appointed as the
Southeastern regional manager of Boer Wuxi sales department
in January 2006. Mr. Wu Jianping was appointed as the Group’s
Sales Director for East China region in January 2011 and was
appointed as the Group’s Sales Director for Central China region
in January 2018. Mr Wu Jianping was appointed as the Vice
President of the Group in September 2020. Since he joined the
Group in 2002, Mr. Wu Jianping has gained extensive working
experience in marketing and sales business in the industry. Mr.
Wu Jianping graduated from the School of Management of China

University of Mining and Technology in July 2002.
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AN Di

AN Di (“Mr. An”), aged 51, is the Vice President of the Group,
in charge of human resources, legal and IT departments. Mr. An
joined the Group in March 2005 and was appointed as Assistant
to General Manager and the Head of Internal Compliance of
Boer Wuxi in November 2006, as factory Operation Manager of
Boer Wuxi in September 2010 and as the Human Resources
Director of the Group in October 2012. Mr. An was re-designated
as Human Resources and Legal Director of the Group in July
2015 and was appointed as the Vice President of the Group in
September 2020. Since he joined the Group in March 2005, Mr.
An has gained experience in overlooking the implementation of
internal compliance, human resources and legal matters. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. An had been an Assistant to the Factory
Director of Tianshui Cheungcheng General Electric Apparatus
Factory. Mr. An graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University with a
diploma in Jurisprudence in 2006.

WU Chang

WU Chang (“Mr. Wu”), aged 52, is the Vice President of
the Group, in charge of business and technology, project
management and factory operation. Mr. Wu Chang is mainly
responsible for project technical plan development, business
quotations, industrial design of product technology, project
execution and factory management etc. Mr. Wu Chang joined
Wuxi City Instrumentation System Works in July 1995. He was
appointed as Project Manager of Boer Wuxi in March 2003 and
as Quality Control department’s Manager of Boer Power in June
2008. In September 2012, Mr. Wu Chang was promoted to the
Customer Center Director of the Group. He was re-designated
as the Research and Development Director of the Research
and Development Department in June 2015 and was then re-
designated as the Business and Technology Director in March
2017. Mr. Wu Chang was appointed as the Vice President of the
Group in January 2021. Mr. Wu Chang graduated from Suzhou
Sericulture College in 1993.
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MA Xiaobin

MA Xiaobin (“Mr. Ma”), aged 45, is the Vice President of the
Group, in charge of overseas business support and material
cost control. Mr. Ma jointed the Group in March 2013 as the
operation manager of Boer (Yixing) Power System Co., Ltd. He
was appointed as the R&D Director of the Group’s R&D center
in 2015, and was appointed as the Group’s Overseas Supply
Chain Director in September 2019. Mr. Ma was appointed as
the Group’s Vice President of Cost in February 2021. Since
joining the Group, he has gained experience in factory operation,
R&D execution, supply chain management and cost control.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ma was the Factory Manager of
Nantong Tianbo Electronics Co., Ltd. Mr. Ma was the Technical
Director of Jiangsu Wellman Group from 2009 to 2010, and he
was the Technical Manager of Jiangsu Hima Electromechanical
Engineering Co., Ltd. Before June 2009. Mr. Ma graduated from
Jiangsu University in June 2001 with a bachelor’s degree in
Engineering.

HE Fuye

HE Fuye (“Mr. He”), aged 56, is the Vice President of the Group,
in charge of the marketing business and the sales business
in the Northern region. Mr. He joined the Group in February
2010 and served as the Sales Director of components in the
Northern Region of Boer Wuxi from February 2010 to February
2013, he was appointed as Sales Director of Boer Wuxi's
power grid business in March 2013, and was appointed as the
Sales Director of the Northern region in July 2016. Mr. He was
appointed as the Vice President of the Group in September
2021. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. He worked in Schneider
Electric (China) from September 1997 to February 2010, where
he served as the National Distributor Pipeline Director. Before July
1994, he worked in Panzhihua Iron and Steel (Group) Company.
Since 1997, Mr. Ho Has gained extensive working experience in
marketing and sales business in the industry. Mr. He graduated
from the University of Electronic Science and Technology of
China in April 1997 with a master’s degree.
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ZHANG Xiaochen

ZHANG Xiaochen (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 38, is the Vice
President of the Group, in charge of the Group’s internal control
and quality control. Mr. Zhang is mainly responsible for the
formulation and optimisation of the Company’s internal control
process and execution standard according to the needs of its
business development; the execution of the internal control of
the Company to help various departments, subsidiaries and
holding companies to carry out on-site supervision over the
relevant business processes and operating practices to reduce
management risk. Mr. Zhang joined Boer Wuxi in September
2015 as the Financial Internal Control Manager, he was
appointed as the Internal Audit Manager in December 2015
and was appointed as the Vice President of the Group in March
20283. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang worked as the
Auditor of the Audit Department of Csc & Associados Sociedade
De Auditores in Macau from September 2008 to October 2010.
From October 2010 to October 2012, Mr. Zhang worked as
the Senior Auditor of Lehman Brown International Accountants.
From October 2012 to September 2015, Mr. Zhang worked as
the Senior Auditor of the Internal Audit Office of Daikin (CHINA)
Investment Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhang graduated from Macau University
of Science and Technology in 2008 with a bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting.

LI Xianli

LI Xianli (“Mr. Li"), aged 49, is the Long-term Customers
Markets Director of the Group. Mr. Li is mainly responsible for the
development of long-term customers markets of the Group and
sales work of Boer Wuxi Tezhong Electrical Capacitor Co., Ltd.
Mr. Li joined Boer Power in April 2011 as the Operation Director.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li was the Purchasing Engineer
and Purchasing Supervisor of York (Wuxi) Air-conditioner
Refrigeration Equipment Co., Ltd. from February 1997 to
November 2004. Mr. Li worked as the Operating Manager
and General Manager of Compair Global Purchasing Center
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from December 2004 to March 2011. Mr. Li
received a bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1997 from Nanjing
Agricultural University and then a master’s degree in Business
Administration in 2006 from Fudan University.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (confinued)

EERGNEEERERE @)

SHEN Weizu

SHEN Weizu (“Mr. Shen”), aged 51, is the Operation Manager
of Wuxi Tezhong Electrical Capacitor Co., Limited. Mr. Shen
joined Boer Wuxi in January 1993 and was appointed as the
Manufacturing Supervisor and Quality Supervisor of Boer Wuxi
in April 1999 and July 2005 respectively. Subsequently he
worked as the Operation Manager of Yixing Boai Automation
Complete Sets of Equipment Co., Ltd. and then Boer Wuxi
between the period from September 2010 and September 2013.
In October 2013, Mr. Shen was promoted to Supply Chain
Management Director of the Group. Mr. Shen was re-designated
as Engineering Director of the Engineering Department in
June 2015 and was appointed as Operation Manager of Wukxi
Tezhong Electrical Capacitor Co., Limited in April 2017. Mr. Shen
graduated from Jiangsu Provincial Huaiyang Electronic Industrial
College in 1998.

CHAN Shiu Pui

Chan Shiu Pui (“Mr. Chan”), aged 43, is the Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan is
mainly responsible for the financial management, corporate
financing and company secretarial matters. Mr. Chan joined the
Group as the Financial Controller and Company Secretary in
October 2019. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan worked for
one of the Big Four international accounting firms and various
companies. He has more than 18 years of experience in auditing
and financial management. Mr. Chan graduated from the
University of Plymouth in the United Kingdom with a bachelor’s
degree majoring in Business Administration in 2002. Mr. Chan
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

LU Jiang

LU Jiang (“Mr. Lu”), aged 42, is the Investor Relations Manager
of the Group. Mr. Lu joined Boer Power in May 2015. He has
extensive experience in the area of investor relations. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Lu worked as the News and Public
Affairs Officer of the British Embassy in China, the Corporate
Development and Investor Relations Manager of Gome Electrical
Appliances Holding Limited (stock code: 493) and the Investor
Relations Manager of PW Medtech Group Limited (stock code:
1358). Mr. Lu received a master’s degree in Computer Science
from University of Hertfordshire in 2003.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELWE

The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in the
Group’s annual report for the year.

The Company and its management are committed to maintaining
good corporate governance with an emphasis on the principles
of transparency, accountability and independence to all
shareholders. The Company believes that good corporate
governance is essential for a continual growth and enhancement
of shareholders’ value.

The Company has applied the principles of good corporate
governance and has complied with the code provisions stipulated
in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 December 2022, except for the
deviations from the code provision C.2.1 which are explained in
the relevant paragraphs on page 40 in this report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code for
Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiries
by the Company to all Directors, all the Directors have confirmed
their compliance with the required standards set out in the
Model Code during the year regarding the directors’ securities
transactions. The Company has also ensured compliance of its
employees who are likely to possess inside information in relation
to the Company or its securities in respect of their dealings with
the Company’s securities.

The following sections set out how the principles in the Code
have been complied with by the Company during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprised eight Directors
consisting of five Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and
strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group.

Function

The Board is responsible for the oversight of the management
of the Company’s business and affairs with the objective of
enhancing shareholder value.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
TEERBE @)

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate
governance duties including the developing, reviewing and
monitoring of the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on the compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance with the Model Code and the
compliance manual applicable to the Company’s employees and
the Directors, and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
Code and disclosing in the corporate governance report of the
annual report of the Company.

In addition, the Board is also responsible for reviewing the
risk management system, discussing with the management
to ensure the effectiveness of the risk management system,
considering major investigation findings on risk management
matters and management’s response to these findings, reviewing
arrangements by which employees and those who deal with the
Company can raise the concerns about possible improprieties
in risk management related to the Company, and ensuring
appropriate follow-up actions have been taken.

The Board has engaged an external independent consultant to
assess the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems annually which covered certain material
controls, including the financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management functions. The assessment
report was reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board to
ensure the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems have been worked effectively.

The daily operations, business strategies and administration of
the Company are delegated to the Executive Directors and the
management with the divisional heads responsible for different
aspects of the business. When the Board delegates different
aspects of its management and administrative functions to the
senior management, it gives clear directions in relation to the
scope of powers of the senior management. Although the Board
is not involved in the Group’s day-to-day operations, it does have
a formal schedule of matters reserved for its own decision, as
defined in its terms of reference.

The Board has established the Group’s purpose, values and
strategy, and has satisfied itself that the Group’s culture is
aligned. Acting with integrity and leading by example, the
Directors promote the desired culture to instill and continually
reinforce across the Group the values of acting lawfully, ethically
and responsibly.
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Board independence

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board and
such mechanisms will be reviewed annually by the Board.
The mechanisms includes (i) all Directors are entitled to retain
independent professional advisors as and when it is required, (i)
all Directors are encouraged to express their views in an open
and candid manner during the Board meetings, (iii) the Chairman
of the Board will meet with the Independent Non-executive
Directors at least annually without the presence of the Executive
Directors, (iv) no equity-based remuneration with performance-
related elements will be granted to Independent Non-executive
Directors, (v) all Independent Non-executive Directors are
required to submit a written confirmation to the Company
annually to confirm their independence; (vi) each Independent
Non-executive Director will be assessed his/her independence
before appointment and the continued independence of the
current long-serving Independent Non-executive Director on
an annual basis; and (vii) at least one-third of the Board are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Board meetings
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During the year, four meetings were held by the Board. The ©RX @ &Ee87 7N eE  SEE2HEe
attendance record of each Director is set out below: EREREST
Number of Number of
Name of Board members attendance meetings
EEgRENRS H R E =E N
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Qian Yixiang® (Chairman and FEROMST D
Chief Executive Officer) (EEFITHAZE) 4 4
Ms. Jia Lingxia® (Chief Operating Officer) BB +0(EELEE) 4 4
Mr. Zha Saibin( EEWLEN 4 4
Mr. Qian Zhongming® SRR S A0 4 4
Mr. Yu Wai Ming RIESEE 4 4
Independent Non-executive Directors HUIFNITEE
Mr. Tang Jianrong ErRER L. 4 4
Mr. Qu Weimin BMREE 4 4
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk RURBE ST E 4 4
Notes: Hiat -
()  Mr. Qian Yixiang is the husband of Ms. Jia Lingxia and the son of Mr. () 8 MEEABTEE L TR LR REFFEENR

Qian Zhongming.

(i)  Mr. Zha Saibin appointed Mr. Yu Wai Ming as his alternate Director and
authorise Mr. Yu Wai Ming to attend Board meetings during his absence.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
—ZE = —4F4F%H Annual Report 2022

F o

(i) BEEWEEREREREEAHEEEES AR
REHRLEERERFRMLFESESEE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
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Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings while reasonable notice is generally
given for other Board meetings.

The Directors would receive relevant documents from the
Company Secretary in a timely manner to enable the Directors
to be informed of the decisions of those matters discussed in
the Board meetings. The Company Secretary would ensure the
procedures of the Board meetings are observed and provide the
Board with opinions on matters in relation to the compliance with
the procedures of the Board meetings. Board minutes prepared
and kept by the Company Secretary are sent to the Directors for
records and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year, the Company had complied with Rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. There were three Independent
Non-executive Directors, representing one-third of the Board.
Among the three Independent Non-executive Directors, one of
them has the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
or related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring independent
judgment on issues of strategy, performance and risk. The
Company has received from each of the Independent Non
— executive Directors annual written confirmations of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such confirmation, the Company considers that all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Qian Yixiang
is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Such deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the Code is deemed
appropriate as it is considered to be more efficient to have one
single person as the Chairman of the Company as well as to
discharge the executive functions of a Chief Executive Officer,
and it provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership
in the development and execution of its long-term business
strategies. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority is adequately ensured by the operations of the Board
which comprises highly experienced individuals. During the year,
the composition of the Board include Independent Non-executive
Directors, all of whom possess adequate independence and
therefore the Board considers that the Company has achieved
balance and provided sufficient protection of the Company’s
interests. The Board will continue to review and consider splitting
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer at a time
when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into account the
circumstances of the Group as a whole.

Appointment, re-election and removal

At any time or from time to time, the Board shall have the power
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an additional Director to the existing Board
subject to any maximum number of Directors, if any, as may be
determined by the shareholders in general meeting. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an additional Director to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) and shall then be
eligible for re-election.
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In accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles”), one third of the Directors for the time being will
retire from office by rotation. Under code provision B.2.2 of the
Code, all the Non-executive Directors should be appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election. At present, each of Mr.
Tang Jianrong, Mr. Qu Weimin and Mr. Lai Wai Leuk has been
appointed for a specific term of three years from their respective
appointments on (i) 30 September 2010 for Mr. Tang Jianrong,
(i) 1 August 2016 for Mr. Qu Weimin and (i) 2 July 2020 for
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk. Mr. Qu Weimin, Mr. Lai Wai Leuk and Mr.
Tang Jianrong had retired from their office and been re-elected
as Independent Non-executive Directors at the AGMs of the
Company in 2019, 2020 and 2021, respectively. Under code
provision B.2.2 of the Code, every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three year. Mr. Qian Zhongming and
Mr. Yu Wai Ming, the Executive Directors, and Mr. Qu Weimin,
the Independent Non-executive Director, will retire from their
office by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and shall be eligible to
offer themselves for re-election pursuant to articles 108 and 109
of the Articles.

Pursuant to the code provision B.2.3 of the Code, any further
appointment of independent non-executive director serving more
than nine years should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders.

Mr. Tang Jianrong has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since September 2010 and has served the
Company for more than nine years. During the tenure of office,
Mr. Tang Jianrong had performed his duties as an independent
non-executive director to the satisfaction of the Board. The
Nomination Committee of the Company has assessed Mr.
Tang Jianrong’s role as an independent non-executive Director,
taking into account factors including but not limited to Mr. Tang
Jianrong’s reputation for integrity, experience, ability to assist
the Board, perspectives and skills. As Mr. Tang Jianrong has
been providing objective and independent views to the Company
during his tenure of office, the Nomination Committee was
of the view that Mr. Tang Jianrong remains committed to his
independent role and that the long service of Mr. Tang Jianrong
would not affect his exercise of independent judgement as an
independent non-executive Director.

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the
Company before the expiration of his term of office and the
Company may by ordinary resolution appoint another Director
in his place. Unless otherwise determined by the Company in
general meeting, the number of Directors shall not be less than
two.
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Directors’ continuous training and development

Directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Group. The Company encourages all Directors to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Group continuously updates
the Directors with circulars and guidance notes on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. The Group
also provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on
the Group’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge his duties.

A summary of the trainings received by the Directors for the year is
as follows:

Name of Board members

EEERENES

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Qian Yixiang® SEERM ST A
Ms. Jia Lingxia® EZEX T
Mr. Zha Saibin BEEW KA
Mr. Qian Zhongming® SE{RRF S A0
Mr. Yu Wai Ming ERES
Independent Non-executive Directors HIIHTEE
Mr. Tang Jianrong et
Mr. Qu Weimin BERE
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk RIZEE L

Notes:

(i) Mr. Qian Yixiang is the husband of Ms. Jia Lingxia and the son of Mr.
Qian Zhongming.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 30 September 2010 in compliance with Rules
3.21 and 3.23 of the Listing Rules and had renewed the
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code which
was adopted by the Board on 15 December 2015. As at 31
December 2022, the Audit Committee had three members, all of
them are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai
Wai Leuk, Mr. Tang Jianrong and Mr. Qu Weimin. Mr. Lai Wai
Leuk is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group, to review the Company’s annual report and
interim reports and to provide advice and comments thereon to
the Board, as well as to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors and assessing their independence and performance.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim and
annual financial statements and reports and discussed with
the external auditors on any significant or unusual items before
submitting such reports to the Board, reviewed the relationship
with the external auditors by reference to the work performed
by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement, as well
as reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and associated
procedures. The Audit Committee also discussed the risk
management system of the Company with the management. In
addition, the members of the Audit Committee held a meeting
with the management and the independent professional
accounting firm appointed by the Company relating to the internal
control review matters during the year. The Audit Committee
also actively participated in the internal control review matters
to improve and strengthen the internal control system of the
Company, where necessary.
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During the year, two meetings were held by the Audit Committee.
No alternate Director was authorised to attend such meetings
and the attendance record of each Committee member is set out
below:

Name of Committee members

ZEEHERE

Independent Non-executive Directors HIIHTEE
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk RERT L

Mr. Tang Jianrong R L.

Mr. Qu Weimin BHRESE

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of the external auditors. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the Company’s annual results for the year.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 30 September 2010 and had
renewed the written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code which was adopted by the Board on 27 March 2012. As
at 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee had five
members comprising three Independent Non-executive Directors
and two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Wai Leuk, Mr.
Tang Jianrong, Mr. Qu Weimin, Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia
Lingxia. Mr. Lai Wai Leuk is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
Directors and the senior management, as well as specific
remuneration packages, conditions and terms of employment
for the Directors and senior management, and evaluating
and making recommendations on the employee benefit
arrangements.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined by the Board,
upon the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee with
reference to the Directors’ qualifications, experience, duties,
responsibilities and performance and results of the Group.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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During the year, one meeting was held by the Remuneration
Committee to review and make recommendations of the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. No
alternate Director was authorised to attend such meeting and the
attendance record of each Committee member is set out below:

Name of Committee members

ZEEREHS

Independent Non-executive Directors BUIHNTES
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk RIFWESEE
Mr. Tang Jianrong R L.

Mr. Qu Weimin BERLE
Executive Directors HiTEF

Mr. Qian Yixiang BRMEE
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEETT

The remuneration of the members of the senior management of
the Group by band for the year is set out below:

FR - FHEZEeRHEERSRAEEEH
MEVIRITERSR - AR E S HMETTRMLIE
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LI

Number of Number of
attendance meeting
HEIRE BRRE

—
—

FRRBESDASESREEENENHE
I

Number of

persons

Remuneration bands <& E N
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 9
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000/8 7T 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 10 and 11
to the financial statements.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and
approved the grant of shares under the share award scheme.
Details of the shares granted are disclosed in the section headed
Share Award Scheme and note 23 to the financial statements
below. The remuneration Committee considered and approved a
shorter vesting period under the share award scheme during the
year, taking into account several factors, including but not limited
to, (i) a way to reward the employee’s past performance, which
can serve as a recognition of their contributions and incentivise
them to continue performing at a high level; (i) a shorter vesting
period will help attract and retain top talent, it will also incentivise
employees to work hard and stay with the Company; and (jii) the
grants align with the interests of employees with those of the
Company’s shareholders, by offering a shorter vesting period,
the Company is giving employees a more immediate stake in the
Company’s success, thereby incentivising them to work towards
achieving the Company’s goals.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 30 September 2010 and had
renewed the written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code which was adopted by the Board on 26 August 2013.
As at 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee had five
members comprising three Independent Non-executive Directors
and two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Wai Leuk, Mr. Tang
Jianrong, Mr. Qu Weimin, Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia Lingxia.
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors.
The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) in compliance with Paragraph J of
Part 1 of the Code. A summary of the Board Diversity Policy is
outlined below.

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of its Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance. It recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board, which can be achieved through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Nomination Committee has the primary responsibility for
identifying qualified candidates to become members of the Board
and Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, with candidates being considered against objective criteria
and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
The Nomination Committee is also responsible for monitoring
the implementation and reviewing the effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee shall review the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy on
an annual basis and it has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy on
20 December 2022.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprised eight Directors,
consisting of seven male directors and one female director, which
is characterised by diversity in terms of gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience and skills.
The Nomination Committee was of the opinion that the Board
consisted of members with diversified gender, age, cultural and
education background, professional experience and skills.

The Board places emphasis on diversity (including gender
diversity) across all levels of the Group. As at 31 December 2022,
69% of the employees are male and 31% of the employees
are female. The Board considers that gender diversity in the
workforce is currently achieved and targets not less than 25% of
the employees are female.

Furthermore, a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) has
been adopted and became effective on 31 December 2018.
According to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee
shall consider the following factors, which are not exhaustive
and the Board has discretion if it considers appropriate, in
assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate regarding
the appointment of directors or re-appointment of any existing
Board member(s): (a) reputation for integrity; (b) accomplishment,
experience and reputation in the business and industry; (c)
whether the proposed candidate is able to assist the Board in
effective performance of the responsibilities; (d) commitment in
respect of sufficient time, interest and attention to the businesses
of the Company and its subsidiaries; (e) diversity in all aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience, as set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time; (f) compliance with the criteria of
independence, in case for the appointment of an Independent
non-executive Director, as prescribed under the Listing Rules,
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time; and (g) any other relevant factors as may be determined
by the Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time as
appropriate.
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In terms of the nomination procedures of the Company, the
proposed candidates will be asked to submit the biographical
information (or relevant details) in a prescribed form by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee shall,
upon receipt of the biographical information (or relevant details)
of the proposed candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is suitable. The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation. If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall rank them by
order of preference based on the criteria as set out above. For
the person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as
a director at the general meeting of the Company pursuant to
its constitutional documents, the Nomination Committee shall
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out above
to determine whether such candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed election of director at the general meeting. The
Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting.

During the year, one meeting was held by the Nomination
Committee and the work performed includes reviewing and
making recommendations to improve the structure, size and
composition of the Board. No alternate Director was authorised
to attend such meeting and the attendance record of each
Committee member is set out below:

Name of committee members

ZEEREHRS

Independent Non-executive Directors BUHNTES
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk RIBEESEE

Mr. Tang Jianrong L.

Mr. Qu Weimin BERLE
Executive Directors HITEF

Mr. Qian Yixiang SR E

Ms. Jia Lingxia BEETT
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AUDIT, INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Directors’ responsibility

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as
the Directors determine as necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Board is
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to any events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board will
continue to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group. The risk
management and internal control systems are reviewed annually.
The internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable
(but not absolute) assurance against material misstatement or
loss, and manage (rather than eliminate) the risks of failure to
achieve business strategies, such risks would include, amongst
others, material risks relating to environmental, social and
governance (“‘ESG”).

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal controls procedures of the Group including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, those relating to
the Group’s ESG performance and reporting and their training
programmes and budget and considers the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company effective and
adequate.

B ABEERREREE

EENEE
EEARRBAEMASRMNEBEVITR
ERARBEBRAHEHIN B EREREANEE
BERFNSEEUBRE - U BB 2R
B TR B B A B SRR (T B ARRF D
SRR METEER RV BN ABEIE -

EERRAEREAKENGEAVHHRER - &

EFEU TR AAEH A RERELLEREN
ELBEANRBENEKRTHABEFSMGEST

It EESREBZFEERERRGAMER
%

Ao B 4
EECHEASENBELEHFENFRIE - &
REIE RN RFKE T TR o NEPEE
N R B IR S E T ALl % ERER RS
BIRHAIE(EIEBE)RE - UREE(MIEHE
BR)REEEBCES R AR MR R 21
HIRE (e RER(RE w2 kER])HE
BERRRE -

FA EFECEHASEABEZENEN
o BREASEEST MIBHRR  URAE
BRE Mg RkERRBEMREEERESE
MER BITEEMERESEN  URET
ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ’]ﬁ?)llp%&&ﬁf’aiﬂﬁ%:&EE I 3B
RAANAREREE NIRRT ﬁx&&ﬁi °

BEESHEZERERLDT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2022 —Z2 = — 44

49



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
TEEBRE @)

Internal audit function

The Internal Audit Department monitors compliance with
policies and procedures and the effectiveness of internal control
structures across the Group and its principal divisions. The
Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee
and ensures the internal controls are in place and functioning
properly as intended.

Also, the Board engaged an external independent consultant
to assess the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems which covered certain material
controls, including the financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management functions during the year.
The assessment report was reviewed by the Audit Committee
and the Board. No major issue but areas for improvement to
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
have been identified. All recommendations from the external
independent consultant would be followed up by the Group to
ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable period of
time. The Group therefore considers that the internal control and
risk management processes are adequate to meet the need of
the Group in its current business environment.

Auditors’ remuneration

During the year, the remunerations paid and payable to the
auditor of the Company, BDO Limited was set out as below:
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Remuneration paid

Nature of services and payable

RIS E ERREMNEHS

RMB’000

ARET T

Audit service ZEBRTE 1,440
Other non-audit service H I B ARTS

— Agreed-upon procedures on interim report  —HRERSRE 2 I TEIZ T 350

— Agreed-upon procedures on continuing —HEBBES S HERF 10

connected transactions
Total 45T 1,800
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DIVIDEND POLICY

On 31 December 2018, a dividend policy was adopted by the
Company (the “Dividend Policy”). Pursuant to the Dividend
Policy, the Company may declare and distribute dividends to
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) in an
amount representing not less than 25% of the distributable net
profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
in any financial year, whether as interim and/or final dividends.
The dividend, if any, will be paid in Hong Kong dollars. In
deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board will take into account, inter alia,
the following factors: (a) the Company’s results of operations;
(b) the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;
(c) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the subsidiaries of the Group; and payment by the
subsidiaries of cash dividends to the Company; (d) the level of the
Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the relevant
financial covenants; (e) any restrictions on payment of dividends
that may be imposed by the Group’s lenders; (f) the Group’s
expected working capital requirements, future expansion plans,
investment plans and future prospects; (g) general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Company;
and (h) any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

The Dividend Policy and the declaration and/or payment of
future dividends under it are subject to the Board’s continuing
determination that the Dividend Policy and the declaration and/or
payment of dividends would be in the best interests of the Group
and Shareholders, and are in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations and the Company’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association. The Board endeavours to maintain a balance
between meeting Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital
management with a sustainable dividend policy. The Board will
continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/
or cancel the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend
Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by
the Company in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from
time to time.
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The Company may declare dividend in the AGM but no dividend
shall exceed the amount recommended by the Board. The Board
may from time to time pay to the Shareholders such interim
dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the profits
of the Group, and may also from time to time declare and pay
special dividends of such amounts and on such dates and out of
such distributable funds of the Company and as it thinks fit.

The Dividend Policy is posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company established a whistleblowing policy which provide
employees and the relevant third parties who deal with the Group
(e.g. customers, suppliers and other service providers) with
guidance and reporting channels on reporting any suspected
improprieties in any matters related to the Group directly
addressed to the designated person of the Group. All reported
matters will be investigated independently and all information
received from a whistleblower and its identity will be kept
confidential.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Company established an anti-corruption policy which outline
the guidelines and standards of conducts in relation to the anti-
corruption and anti-bribery, the responsibilities of employees to
resist fraud, to help the Group defend against corrupt practices
and to report any reasonably suspected case of fraud and
corruption or any attempts thereof, through an appropriate
reporting channel. The Group would not tolerate all forms of fraud
and corruption among all employees and in its business dealing
with third parties.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely
and effective communication with the Shareholders and investors.
The Board also recognises that effective communication with
investors is the key to establish investor confidence and to
attract new investors. Therefore, the Company communicates
with its shareholders and investors through various channels,
including the publication of interim and annual reports, press
announcements and information on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Company continues to maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed of
the Group’s strategy, operations, management and plans. The
Company has regular meetings with the financial analysts, fund
managers and potential investors, and has participated in a
number of investors’ conferences and roadshows organised
by various investment banks since the listing of the Company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 20 October 2010
in order to enhance the Group’s relationship with the equity
research analysts, fund managers, institutional investors and
shareholders, as well as their understanding of the Group’s
strategies, operations and developments. All discussions were
limited to explanations of the previously published material and
general discussion of information which is not inside information.
The Group continues to strengthen its investors’ relationship by
participating in roadshows and conferences.

The AGM provides opportunities for the Shareholders to meet
and raise questions to our Directors, the management and
the external auditors. The members of the Board and external
auditors will attend the AGM. The Group encourages all
Shareholders to attend. Shareholders can raise any comments
on the performance and future directions of the Company and
exchange views with the Directors, the management and the
external auditors at the AGM.

In view of the aforementioned various channels of communication
with the Shareholders and investors, the Board considered the
Company’s communication policy conducted during the year
effective.
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TEEBRE @)

The 2021 AGM was held on 9 June 2022 and the attendance

TEC—FEREBAFAER - _FXAN

record of each Director is set out below: HET  SEFEREEZMNBERSNNAT

Name of Board members AGM
EEERENES REBFEAE
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Qian Yixiang (Chairman) BEMEE(FE) 1
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEERT 1
Mr. Zha Saibin EBEWEE 1
Mr. Qian Zhongming SRR A 1
Mr. Yu Wai Ming RIESRFEE 1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE

Mr. Tang Jianrong EREREE 1
Mr. Qu Weimin BERLE 1
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk RIZEE KL 1

Mr. Qian Yixiang, attended the 2021 AGM which was held on
9 June 2022 by telephone conference to answer the questions
from shareholders. The Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, Mr. Lai Wai Leuk, also attended the 2021 AGM by
telephone conference to answer questions.

During the year, there have been no changes to the Company’s
constitutional documents.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL CODE

Internal Audit Department

On 1 January 2016, the Company set up the Audit Department
to facilitate the reform of the Company’s procedures. From
August 2016, the audit department has converted into an Internal
Audit Department following the expansion of the function of the
internal control team. The Internal Audit Department is separate
and independent of the operation and management system of
the Group. The upmost responsible officer for internal control and
audit of the Group is the professional staff with internal control
and audit experiences.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
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The principal duties of the Internal Audit Department are,
according to its own work plan, giving opinions directly to each
relevant (involved) department or its head officer regarding
system improvement, identification of procedural issues, and
requesting for counter feedback. For example, identifying issues
on streamlining and optimising the procedures and systems are
reported to the responsible person of the respective department;
reporting the results of inspection on the execution of quality
system to the operations manager of the respective plant; and
reporting the audit result on significant malpractices to the Audit
Committee. On the other hand, the department also provides
assistance of internal control in respect of audit or streamlining
of working procedure, and directly reports to the relevant
departments or subsidiaries upon their request.

The duties of the Internal Audit Department are as follows:

e To implement and lead the streamlining of systems and
procedures of the Group headquarters and its subsidiaries
according to its work plan;

e To provide assistance to each department in implementing
optimisation of systems and procedures according to its
work plan;

e To conduct audit on the business of the Group and each of
its subsidiaries according to its work plan;

e To assess the formulation and execution of the Company’s
system according to its work plan;

e To inspect, on its own or with other departments, the
abuse of power, incompliance, violation of financial system,
embezzlement, leakage of confidential information, bride as
well as economic crime within the Company;

e To be responsible for the audit or participate in the audit on
the Company’s significant business activities, projects and
material business contracts.
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Procedures on identifying, assessing and managing
material risks

1. Engaging an external independent consultant to conduct
high-level risk analysis once a year;

2. The Internal Audit Department participates in the Company’s
annual high-level strategic meeting and various monthly
business meeting as well as irregular interview with
the management to identify the risks in operation and
management and consider to include the same in the internal
audit plan;

3. If any material risk is found, the Internal Audit Department
shall immediately report to the Board and follow up the
status of the improvement of the matter.

Procedures on reviewing the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control system and
resolving material internal control defects

The Internal Audit Department identifies risks by reviewing the
existing system and procedure to determine whether there is any
defect in critical procedures according to the system design and
whether it is reasonably designed.

Further, the department identifies the effectiveness of internal
control through regular and non-regular audit.

Information disclosure system

The Group has an information disclosure system to ensure
the access to and confidentiality of inside information until
consistent and timely disclosure of such information is made. The
system regulates how these inside information are handled and
disseminated, including the followings:

e The designated department reports the information on
potential inside information to the Board, which shall
determine if it is an inside information and timely issue the
same pursuant to the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules;

e Information is widely and non-exclusively disclosed to
the public via different ways such as financial report,
announcement and the Company’s website so that its fair
disclosure policy is implemented and disclosed.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”) shall be convened on the written requisition
of one or more members of the Company, at the date of the
deposit of the requisition, holding in aggregate of not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at the general meetings of the Company.
The requisition must specify the objects of the meeting and
must be signed by the relevant requisitionist(s) and deposited
by the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionist(s) may themselves convene a meeting provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
2 months from the said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Shareholders must submit a written notice of proposals they
wish to put forward at an AGM or EGM with the detailed
contact information to the Company Secretary by email to
ron.chan@boerpower.com, or by fax to (852) 2545 8083, or by
mail to the Company’s principal place of business at Unit D, 6th
Floor, Neich Tower, 128 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
within a reasonable time prior to the general meeting so that the
Company will be allowed to meet the notice period to be given
to all the Shareholders as set out below. Detailed procedures
and the notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the shareholders
concerned at an AGM or EGM varies according to the nature of
the proposal. The procedures for the shareholders to convene
and put forward proposals are set out in the notice of the AGM
or EGM and are also available on request to the Company
Secretary. The notice period is set out below:

(i) At least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include
10 business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company in an EGM.

(i) At least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include 20
business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company in an EGM or any resolution of
the Company in an AGM.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns with contact information of the requisitionists to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary by email to
ron.chan@boerpower.com, or by fax to (852) 2545 8083, or by
mail to the Company’s principal place of business at Unit D, 6th
Floor, Neich Tower, 128 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFENRE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are
set out in note 16 to the financial statements. The nature of the
principal activities of the Group has not changed during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, can be found in
the sections headed Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis from pages 5 to 26 of this annual report.
Such discussion forms part of this report of the Directors.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4
of this report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The financial results of the Group for the year are set out
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on page 79 of the annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 5 June 2023 to Friday, 9 June 2023 (both days
inclusive), during such period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2022
AGM of the Company, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 pm on Friday, 2 June 2023.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to RMB65,000 (2021: RMB30,000).
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Details of acquisitions and other movements of non-current assets
(including property, plant and equipment, investment properties
and intangible assets) of the Group during the year are set out in
notes 13 to 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 25(c) to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVE

At 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
was RMB156.4 million (31 December 2021: RMB124.4 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or under the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

RESERVES

The movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and note 25(a) to the financial statements
respectively.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the
Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the revenue from the five largest customers
of the Group accounted for 31.5% (2021: 24.5%) of the total
revenue of the Group and the revenue from the largest customer
accounted for 14.2% (2021: 7.7%) of the total revenue of the
Group.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for 14.4% (2021:
14.2%) and 31.0% (2021: 34.3%) of the Group’s total purchases
for the year, respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest
in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.

DIRECTORS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Directors
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Qian Yixiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Jia Lingxia (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Zha Saibin® (Mr. Yu Wai Ming as his alternate Director)
Mr. Qian Zhongming

Mr. Yu Wai Ming®

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tang Jianrong

Mr. Qu Weimin

Mr. Lai Wai Leuk

Note:

(i) Mr. Yu was appointed by Mr. Zha Saibin as his alternate Director with
effect from 8 January 2021.

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
at each AGM provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years. Mr. Qian Zhongming
and Mr. Yu Wai Ming, the Executive Directors, and Mr. Qu
Weimin, the Independent Non-executive Director, will retire
from their office by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and shall
be eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM pursuant to the Articles.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years, which may
be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed
for a term of three years in accordance with their respective
appointment letters.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered
into any service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors is considered to have an
interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed Continuing Connected
Transactions below, none of the Directors or entities connected
with a Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or related companies was a
party during the year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the Company’s controlling Shareholders, has confirmed
to the Company of his/its compliance with the non-competition
undertakings given to the Company under the Deed of Non-
competition as defined in the prospectus dated 7 October
2010. The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive
Directors) have reviewed the status of compliance and also
confirmed that all the undertakings under the Non-competition
Deed have been complied with by the controlling Shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

The particulars of the Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and the five highest paid employees during the
year are set out in notes 10 and 11 respectively to the financial
statements and section headed Remuneration Committee above.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was
approved by the Board on 17 June 2021 (the “Adoption Date”).
The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to recognise the
contribution made by certain employees of the Group and to
provide eligible employees, being any employee, whether full
time or part time and whether becoming the employee of the
Company before or after the Adoption Date, of any member of
the Group from time to time, save for those excluded employees
as determined by the Board or the trustee (as the case may be),
with incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group and attract suitable personnel
for the growth and further development of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme involves existing shares and the Board hopes
to encourage employees of the Group to have, through shares
awarded under the Share Award Scheme, a direct financial
interest in the long-term success of the Group. The Share Award
Scheme operates for 10 years starting from the Adoption Date.

The total number of all the shares purchased by the trustee under
the Share Award Scheme must not exceed 10% of the issued
shares as at the Adoption Date (being 77,376,900 shares) unless
the Board otherwise decides. The maximum number of shares
which can be awarded to a selected employee under the Share
Award Scheme in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date.
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During the year and up to the date of this report, the Company
had not purchased any of the Company’s existing shares on the
market for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme.

On 5 September 2022, a total of 4,000,000 shares were granted
to Mr. Zha Saibin, an Executive Director, under the Share Award
Scheme at nil consideration, representing approximately 0.52%
of the issued shares of the Company, the shares were vested on
5 September 2022. On 29 December 2022, a total of 7,500,000
shares were granted to employees under the Share Award
Scheme at nil consideration, representing approximately 0.97%
of the issued shares of the Company, the shares were all vested
on 29 December 2022. The fair value per awarded share granted
was measured based on the market price of the Company’s
shares at the respective grant date. Information on the
accounting policy and details of the grant of awarded shares are
provided in the note 4(0) and note 23 to the financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the trustee held 4,843,000 shares
under the Share Award Scheme, representing about 0.63% of
the issued share capital of the Company. The remaining life of the
Share Award Scheme was about 8 years and 3 months. As at
31 December 2021 and 2022, there were no unvested awarded
shares under the Share Award Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
or the chief executives of the Company or any of their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 36 to 57 of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

The Directors and chief executives of the Company who held
office as at 31 December 2022 had the following interests in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) at that date as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code:

EERITHRARRN QA REEEZENR
7 HERORESHNERRAR

RBEARR BHELHAEERM(TEHLRE
ﬂﬂﬁlJJ)%352{%%/%;&%/,\7(_3#]7&;.5%% AOEE
SR BFESTAIMBNE ARG REBERA + R
CE I CFF A=+ —HERNARRES
NMEETHABHEBE ARG REMFBEEE (T
ERBHELBEERN) MG - BERGD RES
BRI T

Total number  Approximate

of ordinary % of total

Directors Capacity shares held issued shares
EBRITRG
BE 4 BERBERAY HENNEIL
Long position in shares
IR EIFE
Mr. Qian Yixiang Interest of controlled corporation 521,115,0000 67.35
FERROME & REEHEE R s
Ms. Jia Lingxia Interest of controlled corporation 521,115,0000 67.35
BEAEER L MRS EE R s
Mr. Zha Saibin Beneficial owner 8,780,000 1.13
EEWEE BB A
Note: et -

()  The 520,815,000 shares were owned by King Able Limited (“King Able”)
and 300,000 shares were owned by Bright Rise Trading Limited, both
companies owned as to 50% by Mr. Qian Yixiang and 50% by Ms. Jia
Lingxia. Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia Lingxia are thus deemed to be
interested in those shares by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company held any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the following interests of 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company (other than those
held by the Directors and chief executives of the Company) were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Substantial shareholder Capacity
FERR FESH
Long position in shares

IR EIFE

King Able Beneficial owner
HERR AR BHEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
the Directors and chief executives of the Company) who had
interests or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which were recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Boer Smart Technology (Wuxi) Co., Limited (“Boer Smart Wuxi”)
is effectively owned as to 1.3%, 57.26%, 37.33% and 2.67% by
Mr, Qian Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia, Mr. Qian Haosheng and Mr.
Tao Linwei. Qian Yixiang is an Executive Director, the chairman
of the Board, the chief executive officer of the Company, one of
the controlling Shareholders of the Company and the husband
of Ms. Jia Lingxia. Ms. Jia Lingxia is an Executive Director, the
chief operating officer of the Company, one of the controlling
Shareholders of the Company and the wife of Mr. Qian Yixiang.
Mr. Qian Haosheng is the son of Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia
Lingxia. Mr. Tao Linwei is a family member of Mr. Qian Yixiang
and Mr. Qian Zhongming, an Executive Director of the Company.
Accordingly, Boer Smart Wuxi is an associate and a connected
person of the Company as defined in the Listing Rules.
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wmRKRE
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shares held % of total
2ETRHG
SEREYH #HAENEIL
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Boer Energy Jiangsu Co., Ltd (“Boer Energy”) is directly owned
as to 60% by Wuxi Boer Cloud Technology Co., Limited, a
company owned as to 90% by Mr, Qian Yixiang and 10% by Ms.
Jia Lingxia, respectively. Accordingly, Boer Energy is an associate
and a connected person of the Company as defined in the Listing
Rules.

During each of the year ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and
2022, the Group entered into the following continuing connected
transactions with Boer Smart Wuxi and Boer Energy which are
subject to the reporting and annual review requirements set out
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions are set out
below:

The purchase framework agreement with Boer Smart
Wuxi

On 6 August 2020, Temper Energy International, S.L. (“Temper
Energy”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the purchase framework agreement (the “Purchase
Framework Agreement”) with Boer Smart Wuxi pursuant to
which Temper Energy may purchase the intelligent household
equipment from Boer Smart Wuxi from 6 August 2020 to 31
December 2022. The order amount, the terms of delivery and
price of the intelligent household equipment in each order shall
be separately negotiated, entered into, and be performed under
separate purchase order to be entered into between Boer
Smart Wuxi and Temper Energy with such requirements and
specifications to be mutually agreed in writing in accordance with
the terms of the Purchase Framework Agreement.
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Pursuant to the Purchase Framework Agreement, the price of
the intelligent household equipment will be priced on normal
commercial terms in the ordinary course of business of Temper
Energy with reference to the prevailing market price of the same
or similar products offered by independent third parties.

The annual caps under the Purchase Framework Agreement are
EUR530,000, EUR1,250,000 and EUR1,250,000 for each of the
years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively.
During the year, Temper Energy purchased intelligent household
equipment from Boer Smart Wuxi amounted to EUR848,000
(equivalent to RMB6.0 million) (2021: EUR965,000 (equivalent to
RMB7.4 million)).

On 1 December 2022, Temper Energy entered into a new
purchase framework agreement (the “Renewed Purchase
Framework Agreement”) with Boer Smart Wuxi pursuant to
which Temper Energy may purchase the intelligent household
equipment from Boer Smart Wuxi from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2025. The annual caps under the Renewed Purchase
Framework Agreement are EUR1,200,000 for each of the years
ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 respectively.

Details of the Purchase Framework Agreement and the
Renewed Purchase Framework Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 6 August 2020 and 1
December 2022.

The processing subcontracting framework
agreement with Boer Smart Wuxi

On 6 August 2020, Boer (Wuxi) Power System Co., Limited (“Boer
Wuxi”), Boer (Yixing) Power System Co., Ltd. (“Boer Yixing”)
and Boer Wuxi Tezhong Electrical Capacitor Co., Ltd. (“Boer
Tezhong”), which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
entered into the processing subcontracting framework agreement
(the “Processing Subcontracting Framework Agreement”) with
Boer Smart Wuxi pursuant to which Boer Wuxi, Boer Yixing
and Boer Tezhong may provide assembly and processing
services for manufacture of intelligent household equipment
(the “Assembly and Processing Services”) to Boer Smart Wuxi
from 6 August 2020 to 31 December 2022. The service fees of
the Assembly and Processing Services in each order shall be
separately negotiated, entered into, and be performed under
separate subcontracting order to be entered into among Boer
Smart Wuxi, Boer Wuxi, Boer Yixing and Boer Tezhong with such
requirements and specifications to be mutually agreed in writing
in accordance with the terms of the Processing Subcontracting
Framework Agreement.
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Pursuant to the Processing Subcontracting Framework
Agreement, the Assembly and Processing Services to be
provided to Boer Smart Wuxi shall be conducted fairly in line
with the market practice, and such terms offered to Boer Smart
Wauxi shall not be less favourable than those offered to any
Independent Third Parties by Boer Wuxi, Boer Yixing, and Boer
Tezhong.

The annual caps under the Processing Subcontracting
Framework Agreement are RMB4.2 million, RMB10.0 million
and RMB10.0 million for each of the years ended 31 December
2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively. During the year, service fees
for the provision of the Assembly and Processing Services to
Boer Smart Wuxi by Boer Wuxi, Boer Yixing and Boer Tezhong
amounted to RMB769,000 (2021: RMB1.3 million).

Details of the Processing Subcontracting Framework Agreement
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 6 August
2020.

The sales framework agreement with Boer Energy

On 13 September 2021, Boer Wuxi entered into the sales
framework agreement (the “Sales Framework Agreement”)
with Boer Energy pursuant to which Boer Wuxi may supply
the electrical distribution equipment and related components
and spare parts to Boer Energy from 13 September 2021 to
31 December 2023. The order amount, the terms of delivery
and price of the electrical distribution equipment and related
components and spare parts in each order shall be separately
negotiated, entered into, and be performed under separate
purchase order to be entered into between Boer Energy and
Boer Wuxi with such requirements and specifications to be
mutually agreed in writing in accordance with the terms of the
Sales Framework Agreement.

Pursuant to the Sales Framework Agreement, the price of
the electrical distribution equipment and related components
and spare parts will be negotiated on an arm’s length basis
and determined in the ordinary course of business on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than those
provided to Independent Third Parties by Boer Wuxi in the PRC.

The annual caps under the Sales Framework Agreement are
RMB5.0 million, RMB15.0 million and RMB15.0 million for each
of the years ended/ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023
respectively. During the year, Boer Wuxi did not sell any electrical
distribution equipment and related components and spare parts
to Boer Energy.
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Details of the Sales Framework Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 September 2021.

Confirmations from Independent Non-executive
Directors and auditor of the Company

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified letter
containing the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transaction disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report, there
was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the
benefit of any of the Directors of the Company or an associate
company.

During the year, Directors and Senior Officers Liability Insurance
is in place to provide appropriate cover for the directors and
senior management of the Group. However, such insurance
coverage shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud
or dishonesty which may attach to such director and senior
management.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal control
and financial reporting matters including a review of the annual
results of the Group for the year.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited will retire and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO
Limited as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board

Qian Yixiang
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VRS

IBDO

TEE : +852 2218 8288
{5E : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

HEARATHEEP1115E
JkZH2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BOER POWER HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Boer
Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 160, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
B ZEENERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

RECOGNITION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

BRETSER
AREFSHEEREBAMNERHE - R5Y
ARG AMBHREANEARRERNTHE - 5
LEBREERMBAEBF AV BREILE AR
ERRBETREN - RAIT S ELFHEEMR
BERNESR -

Refer to note 24(b) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 106.

The Key Audit Matter

Deferred tax assets are recognised mainly relating to unused
tax benefits of impairment losses on trade receivables and the
carry-forward of tax losses and tax credits.

The Group considered that it is probable that future taxable
profits according to the business plans and budgets for the
relevant subsidiaries will be available against which these tax
benefits can be utilised.

We identified the recognition of deferred tax assets as a
key audit matter because the realisability of deferred tax
assets, which depend on whether sufficient taxable profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future,
are associated with significant degree of estimates and
judgements.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment about the recognition of deferred
tax assets included:

— understanding and evaluating the
management’s procedures and relevant
controls regarding the completeness of tax
exposures and estimating the provision for
income tax and deferred tax assets to be
recognised.

— reviewing the latest correspondence with
the tax authorities to assess management’s
estimates.

— assessing the probability that the
subsidiaries of the Group may use their
deferred tax assets in the future , particularly
with regard to the ability of each subsidiary
to generate sufficient future taxable profits
in a foreseeable future allowing the use of
existing tax benefits carried forward.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
B ZEENERE

RECOVERABILITY OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 97 to 99.

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying value of trade
receivables was RMB586,646,000 (gross trade receivables:
RMB2,213,202,000; allowance for impairment losses:
RMB1,626,556,000), which represent approximately 60% of
total current assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position (2021: 57%).

The Group measures the loss allowance for its trade
receivables at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) using the provision matrix approach.
The provision matrix is determined based on information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
conditions, as well as the time value of money.

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined
with the significant degree of judgements made by the
management in assessing the impairment of trade receivables
and determining the allowance for impairment losses.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
—Z— —4F4F%H Annual Report 2022

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability
of trade receivables included the following:

— obtaining an understanding of and
assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the Group’s key
internal controls relating to credit control,
debt collection and making allowance for
impairment losses;

— obtaining an understanding of the basis
of management’s judgements about the
recoverability of individual balances and
evaluating the impairment allowances with
reference to debtors’ financial condition, the
industry in which the debtors are operating,
the ageing of overdue balances, historical
and post year-end payment records,
legal documents relating to disputes with
customers, rescheduling of payment agreed
with customers and other relevant information
obtained from other audit procedures;

— assessing the assumptions and estimates
made by the management in development
of the ECLs including considering the
customers’ expected payment pattern along
with macroeconomic information; and

— obtaining a summary of subsequent

settlements relating to trade receivable
balances at 31 December 2022 and
inspecting underlying documents relating to
the payments received, on a sample basis.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
B ZEERE @)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
B ZEERE @)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
B ZEERE @)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Amy Yau Shuk Yuen
Practising Certificate No. PO6095
Hong Kong, 27 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FERaREMZEkRR

for the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Renminbi)
(ECTCCET A=+ BLEFEAARERE)

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE AR%T ARETT
Revenue WA 6 626,624 572,643
Cost of sales SHERA 6 (443,552) (380,662)
Gross profit EF 6 183,072 191,981
Other net income/(loss) Hipl A/ (E518)F58 7 17,317 (5,147)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS A (58,530) (71,466)
Administrative and other operating expenses THREMEERS (80,879) (80,316)
Provision of impairment losses for trade and other  FEURE 5 K E A BR 2R &Y
receivables HEBBEE 18(b) (1,200) (4,970)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AR - 94,006
Profit from operations eyl 59,780 124,088
Finance costs BT RK AN 8(i) (27,692) (27,412)
Profit before taxation BREC A A 8 32,088 96,676
Income tax expense FTiSFif 2 9(a) (1,997) (84,215)
Profit for the year FRHH 30,091 12,461
Other comprehensive income for the year FAEMEENRZE
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to  Ef& Alge EF 5B AEEH
profit or loss: ER
Exchange differences on translation of financial ~ #& KA s B AFEIZSN
statements of operations outside Mainland ERBTEIRRA
China MEN =5 (11,065) 16,604
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEWELE 19,026 29,065
Profit/(loss) attributable to: e/ (E18) -
Equity shareholders of the Company KRR 30,231 12,142
Non-controlling interests ESt G (140) 319
Profit for the year FN A 30,091 12,461
Total comprehensive income attributable to: [EMR 2 E U S
Equity shareholders of the Company KA ERRR 19,166 28,746
Non-controlling interests FErn R (140) 319
Total comprehensive income for the year FAELEBHLEE 19,026 29,065
Earnings per share FREF
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EAREEARES) 12 4.0 1.6

The notes on pages 84 to 160 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RAMERAS

80

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B zE AR¥ETR AREFT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 13 136,164 145,081
Investment properties wEMZE 14 82,423 88,423
Intangible assets EEE 15 754 1,128
Pledged deposits BEAER 19(b) 110,000 60,000
Deferred tax assets R IBEE 24(b) 66,063 70,063
395,404 364,695
Current assets REEE
Inventories =8 17 136,027 151,255
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 N H MR 18 615,211 579,714
Pledged deposits BEHER 19(b) 168,685 157,648
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEeEEY 19(a) 59,794 77,735
979,717 966,352
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings E=Y 20 225,470 411,359
Trade and other payables TENE S NREMEER 21 646,355 485,270
Current tax liabilities BEVEAR I B 1R 24(a) 722 290
e 872547 896919
Netcurrentassets =~ *"&8RE®E 107,170 69,438
Total assets less current liabilittes =~ #RZERMHAMR 502574 434128
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings E=y 20 212,238 96,767
Amounts due to related parties FERTREE B 28(a) 1,082 66,961
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFIEAE 24(b) - 3,035
213,320 166,763
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 289,254 267,365
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continved)

e BN R @)
at 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Renminbi)
R-ZE-——F+-A=+—BAARKEE)

2022 2021

——— —E-

P S m—

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
&t ARETT NS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRR#E
Share capital R 25(c) 66,010 66,010
Reserves 5 25(d) 223,892 201,863
Total equity attributable to equity RAFERZRREMN

shareholders of the Company FEREE 289,902 267,873
Non-controlling interests FEERER (648) (508)
TOTAL EQUITY A% 289,254 267,365

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
27 March 2023.

Qian Yixiang
S
Director

EFE

The notes on pages 84 to 160 form part of these financial
statements.

HEEFERN T =F=A_+tAHEREK
RETIE -

Yu Wai Ming
RIES
Director

EF

SF84E160H MY FE B A 5% F B 75 ek 69 — B
g

o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FEHREBR

for the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZT -+ -A=1+—BLEFEAAREE)

Balance at 1 January 2021 R-F--5-f-BRER 66,010 (100,121) 20710 1,605 256,018 21436 312 (37.9%8) 33312 261,244 (63,103 198,141
Proft for the year ER - - - = = o = = 12182 12,142 319 12,461
Qther comprehensive income Lfr2EkE = = = = = = = 16,604 o 16,604 o 16,604
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 ENAEE = = ° = = = = 16,604 1214 %8746 319 20,065
Eouity-setled share-based transection [\ EREENRAR RS - - - 2067 - - - = = 2067 = 2967
Vesting ofshares granted under RERHER SRR R

tere avard schere - BB g ) - - - - - - - -
Disposel of subsiares HEHEAR = - - - (e - - (39 O 1 IV R A

Balanceat 31 December 221 and ~ R=F=-FTA=+-RR

1 danuay 222 i 0 w010 (14989 - - BB 24 e e g 6 %735
Proftfor the year ERET - - - - - - - -oam N (40 300
Other comprehensive iicome At el - - - - - - - (1106) - (108 - (1106)
Total comprehensive income for the year £R2ENELE - - - - - - - (11,065) 30,231 19,166 (140) 19,026
Equiy-setled share-besed tensacton  HEREEHRAT RS % - - - 2863 - - - - - 2863 - 2863
Vesting ofshares granted under REROEREERE R

share award scheme 23 - 2,863 - (2,863) - - - - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2022 RoB--E+-A=+-BHkE 66,010 (12,076) - - 21413 21,436 3n (32,99) 75,685 289,902 (648) 289,254

The notes on pages 84 to 160 form part of these financial E84F 160 B KM TR Z TSRz 1) — 5B
statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FEReNER

for the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Renminbi)
(ECTCCET A=+ BLEFEAARERE)

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARET T BN S
Operating activities FE— S
Cash generated from operations CEFTEAIRS 19(c) 197,503 375,568
Income tax paid BTETSHR (600) (1,676)
Net cash generated from operating REEFEYE
activities HE R 196,903 373,892
Investing activities RETE
Payment for purchase of property, EEME  BEK
plant and equipment B (3,626) (3,799)
Payment for purchase of intangible assets BEEFEENK - (137)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BE K&
plant and equipment BABFTS IR 32 2,722
Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries ~ H &M B R TS RUEE 5 - (1,326)
Interest received [l 13,698 920
Placement of pledged deposits BTEABEBER (397,007) (116,025)
Withdrawal of pledged deposits IRENVE E IR 335,970 82,708
Net cash used in investing activities RETEBHMBAREFEHE (50,933) (34,937)
Financing activities A& EE
Proceeds from borrowings EEmERIE 19(d) 462,970 770,726
Repayment of borrowings BEEE 19(d) (533,388) (841,068)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERR 19(d) - (4,959)
Payment for interest on borrowings EBERN B 19(d) (27,692) (25,758)
Repayment of advance from related parties {238 BsE 5 B3¢ 19(d) (65,879) (199,841)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEHMERARESTEE (163,989) (300,900)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HeRESEEY
cash equivalents (mA),/#EhnEEE (18,019) 38,055
Cash and cash equivalents R—BA—HBEWEER
at 1 January REEEY 19(a) 77,735 39,866
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EX# 5> & & 78 (186)
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—A=+—8%
at 31 December ReERBELSEEY 19(a) 59,794 77,735

The notes on pages 84 to 160 form part of these financial

statements.

73 e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R RO EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN  UARKERHE)

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Boer Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 February 2010
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in design, manufacture and sale of electrical
distribution equipment and provision of electrical distribution
systems solution services in the People’s Republic of China

(the “PRC?).

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
has issued a number of new or amended HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the

Group:

e Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before

Intended Use

e  Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts —

Cost of Fulfiling a Contract

e Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020,
Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards, HKFRS
9 financial Instruments, HKFRS 16 Leases, and

HKAS 41 Agriculture

e Amendments to HKFRS 3, Conceptual Framework

for Financial Reporting

None of these new or amended HKFRSs has a material
impact on the Group’s results and financial position for

the current or prior period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention
is to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts!

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies'
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction’

Amendments to Lease liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current, Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R =T @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

s -

AAREEHE)

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
HKASs and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “HKFRS”) and the provisions of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which concern the
preparation of financial statements. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The impact of COVID-19 in current reporting
period

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic has
dramatically affected global economic activities since
early 2020. While disruptions are more immediate and
pronounced in certain industries, its impact on the
electrical distribution equipment industry in the PRC,
where the Group’s principal operations are located, has
been rather modest during the current reporting period.
Nevertheless, as the pandemic continues to evolve, it is
challenging at this juncture to predict the full extent and
duration of its impact to the business and the economy.
Management has assessed the impact of COVID-19
across the Group, and up to the date of this report, has
not identified any areas that could have a significant
impact on the financial performance or position of the
Group.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”). These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) because the
functional currency of most of the Group’s subsidiaries
is RMB. All financial information presented in RMB has
been rounded to the nearest thousand, except when
otherwise indicated. The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R EENEE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group and a trust established
for the Group’s share award scheme. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using
the acquisition method when the acquired set of
activities and assets meets the definition of a business
and control is transferred to the Group. In determining
whether a particular set of activities and assets is a
business, the Group assesses whether the set of assets
and activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input
and substantive processes and whether the acquired
set has the ability to produce outputs. The cost of
an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities
incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date
fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair
value and the resulting gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests in
the subsidiary either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from
equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R EENEE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Business combination and basis of

consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition
date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to owners of the Company. Profit
or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control of the subsidiary are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amount of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as
would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R EENEE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee without holding the majority of the
voting rights. In determining whether de-facto control
exists, the Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances, including:

e the size of the Company’s voting rights relative to
both the size and dispersion of other parties who
hold voting rights;

e substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting rights;

e other contractual arrangements; and
e historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R EENEE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 20 years after the date of
completion.

Plant and machinery 5-20 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years

Plant and machinery under finance lease are depreciated
over its useful life being no more than 20 years.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
—Z— —4F4F%H Annual Report 2022

4 FESTHBXRE)

(c) % - BMEKRRE

ME -~ BERREBEAABERFITE
K RETRERRR IR -

ME - BEAREBEORANBEEREAE
KM iEZ FH B BRI -

RAEETRB AR ARREEN A A 5E
MAARGEE - LANGZIA B MR ANEER] 5
HER - BREKATFABRENKREE
KEERRELEE(MER) ° PRHH
DHIFREES T AL IR - FTA A
HERREEEELMMBPRN GRS

M - BB RRERAESEN GG A
2 A F AR FHRIT & DA B A A (8
HRERARIREE) - AIMERAFH - &
HREERTEENE 2MARBRAL
PREEER TEL TR - Al A S 2
™

RIATE + 30 H 5 (B M TR
0 B R B A AT P A R (AR
EE A% - ETSRIET S A%20%)
HERE -

5% 5= B i 23 5Z 204
RE 5%
Rfh -~ BB REARE 5%

REME IR TRV N 2512 E Al A
FH(TZR20F)FENE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R =T @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(C
(c)

(d)

(e)

ONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group has elected
to present the ROU assets in “property, plant and
equipment” applying a cost model (see note 4(f)).

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 4(p)). Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost
of investment properties, less their residual values, if
any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives of 20 years. Both the useful life and residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property, calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R =T @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Government grant (continued)

(f

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable and are recognised as other revenue, rather
than reducing the related expense.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement
of financial position as right-of-use ("ROU") assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for
an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which
are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has elected
not to recognise ROU assets and lease liabilities for low-
value assets and leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term of less than 12 months. The
lease payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

ROU asset

The ROU asset is initially recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (jii) any initial direct costs incurred
by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred
to produce inventories.

The Group has elected to present the ROU assets in
“property, plant and equipment” applying a cost model.
Under the cost model, the Group measures the ROU
assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date. The lease payments shall be
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or,
if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group shall
use the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R EENEE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liability (continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any
lease incentives receivable: (i) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modification, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments.

The Group as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment property to a
number of tenants. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for
a lease that was not part of the original terms and
conditions of the lease are accounted for as lease
modifications. The Group accounts for a modification
to an operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the maodification, recognising the remaining lease
payments as income on a either a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the remaining lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R =T @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EHAIN -

AAREEHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g9) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

The amortisation expense is recognised in profit
or loss and included in administrative and other
operating expenses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows.

10 years
10 years

Software
Trademarks

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested for
impairment by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts (note 4(p)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of
its revaluation surplus.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R =T @)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. Trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R =T @)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Debt investments at FVOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest
rate method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at FVOCI, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R =T @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EHAIN -

AAREEHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. Equity investments at FVOCI
are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade receivables, contract
assets, financial assets measured at amortised cost
and bills receivable measured at FVOCI. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these
are ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R EENEE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(h) Financial Instruments (continued)
(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables and contract assets using
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12-months ECLs. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criteria is
more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R EENEE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual or a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when:

e significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

e abreach of contract, such as a default or being
more than 90 days past due;

e the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise; or

e it is probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in “FVTOCI reserve (recycling)”.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R EENEE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Financial Instruments (continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities
at amortised costs are initially measured at fair
value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities
held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at FVTPL,
except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL if the following criteria are
met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (i) the liabilities are part of a group of financial
liabilities which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy; or (jii) the
financial liability contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R =T @)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Financial Instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for the gains and losses
arising from the Group’s own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit
or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan
note issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

(iii)

(iv)

V)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R EENEE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Financial Instruments (continued)

(vi) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at FVTPL is recognised initially at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance,
being the ECLs provision measured in accordance
with principles of the accounting policy set out in
note 4(h)(Il); and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms
of that liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R =T @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>
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AAREEHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

)

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method/first-
in first out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with
the policy set out in note 4(h)(ll).

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R EENEE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Revenue recognition (continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

e creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of
the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R =T @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

s -

AAREEHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Revenue recognition (continued)

0]

(i)

Intelligent Electrical Management Solutions
(“IEM Solutions”)

IEM Solutions include sale of electrical distribution
systems, Engineering Procurement and Construction
(“EPC”) project, and sale of electricity. For the IEM
projects where a performance obligation is satisfied
over time based on the progress towards complete
satisfaction of a good or service as the Group’s
performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced, the revenue is recognised over time. The
progress of completion is measured by reference to
the proportion of the actual cost incurred to date to
the estimated total cost of the relevant contract. For
the EPC projects where a performance obligation
cannot be demonstrated as being satisfied over
time, the revenue is recognised at a point in time
when control of a good or service passes to the
customer. There is generally one performance
obligation.

Revenue arising from sale of electricity is recognised
at a point in time upon the transmission of electric
power to the power grid companies in accordance
with meter readings.

Sale of components and spare parts of
electrical distribution systems

Customers obtain control of the products when the
goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised at a point in time
upon when the customers accepted the products.
There is generally only one performance obligation.
Contracts generally contain no right of return,
warranty and no variable consideration.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R EENEE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

U

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or
settled and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period, and reflects any
uncertainty related to income taxes.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be
recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when
they relate to items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R EENEE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end
of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of
group entities’ separate financial statements on the
translation of long-term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part
of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R =T @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after
the end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

(o) Share-based payments

Where share options or shares are awarded to
employees and others providing similar services, the fair
value of the services received is measured by reference
to the fair value of the options or shares at the date of
grant. Such fair value is recognised in profit or loss over
the vesting period with a corresponding increase in the
share option or shares reserve within equity. Non-market
vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting
the number of equity instruments expected to vest at
the end of each reporting period so that, ultimately, the
cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period
is based on the number of options that eventually vest.
Market vesting conditions are factored into the fair value
of the options granted. As long as all non-market vesting
conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of
whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve
a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options or shares are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair value
of the options, measured immediately before and after
the modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over
the remaining vesting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R =T @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p) Impairment of assets (other than financial

4 FESTHBRAE

(p) EERE(TEESREE)

assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

Property, plant and equipment/Investment property
under cost model;

interests in leasehold land held for own use; and
investments in subsidiaries.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash
generating unit.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R =T @)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R =T @)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(q) Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity and include:

4 FESTHBXRE)

(a) BAES (&)

b) (&)
BAMERRERE LR EER
SRTEAREe R EZBATHE
EYENRERKE @ 821

X

() that person’s children and spouse or domestic () ZARALHOFRREBHKRE
partner; Ha

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic (i) FBRATHEBKKEHEN
partner; and T Kk

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the

(i) ZBATHZBALHEBNL
REFBEHZHEA -

FTESHHERMEFTIRERRN
EFERIR

FERAS BT HRE - EFEATARER

Directors are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

(@) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgment
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations.

In accordance with HK (IFRIC)-Int 23, the Group makes
consistent judgements and estimates for both current
tax and deferred tax. If the facts or circumstances on
which the judgement and estimate was based change or
as a result of new information that affects the judgement
or estimate, the Group reassesses the judgement or
estimate.

B 88 5 (B SOR 1S %DEI’J%‘F&ELEEE
EfEL B - At RRER - AR RAE
FARAR T & B AR B S H AR /S A8 R
MEREL - BRERATEBRINZER
ate

ARG AR RR S RHBETE -
HesthrtFhrER 1?5;515?#&
CHEE IR H‘JEAEZHJ%F?EEW © HAHIER

[ B &2 B IR B MOR SR AR - AURME ;.THHF'EJ
B R REAFEIERR,

(a) Fr8®H
EBEABHBESREE TR AR
TRIEREIRIE L HIET - AEBEBIETER
ST BE - WARRFHRR SR
EARSHRBEERESTE %Eﬁ%ﬁ
LART RIS IR G100 Fr g 2

':'A

REEE(BRMERERELRES) -
RREE235% ZIK%EJLEH,HHRIE&M
FERSIRLE ) — B HI T Ko fdat - ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ
Rt RIBNZ B BERA P
IR EH L EFTER ,\W
SEeEMHAZ ARG

BEEHEZERERLT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2022 — == — 44

111



112

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R EENEE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) ECLs impairment

(c)

The measurement of impairment losses under
HKFRS 9 across all categories of financial assets
requires judgement. In particular, the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral
values when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in
which can result in different levels of allowances.

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group’s
financial statements require measurement at, and/or
disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible.
Inputs used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique
utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

e | evel 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical
items (unadjusted);

e | evel 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

e | evel 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from
market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised
in the period they occur.

The Group measures the following item at fair value:
e Financial assets at FVTOCI.
For more detailed information in relation to the fair

value measurement of the item above, please refer to
note 26(e).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R =T @)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

6 WAKTDHERHRE

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s top management for the purposes of allocating
resources to and assessing the performance of the Group’s
various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of business activities. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the reporting segments.

Segment revenue, expenses, and results include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment,
but exclude exceptional items. Segment assets excluding
deferred tax assets and tax recoverable are managed on
a group basis. Segment liabilities excluding deferred tax
liabilities and tax payable are managed on a group basis.

The Group has two (2021: two) reportable segments.
The segments are managed separately as each business
offers different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

— |EM Solutions, which include sale of electrical distribution
systems, EPC projects, and sale of electricity.

— Components and Spare Parts Business (“CSP
Business”), which include components and spare parts
for application on electrical distribution equipment or
the basic function units of the solutions and sells such
components and spare parts to the customers.

REDMESEAMBERRASENEED
MERWNEHE - DEEHRAAKERSE
EERBESNEERLIZAKETF
EBRENPHEER D S -

ERERNEED B IEA T ART R
2R BUREEENHABERULE
Bt BRFBIABZMHEERE - AER

i o MELE DD AFHEARREDED

DEWA - X REEBELSHBEREMN
ZEBAMAAEDEEZ DB ZER
HERFIRIR B BRSO - DRBEE (T RIGELEH
HEERAWEBHRIE) T AE R EEERE o
DHMEBEE(TERELENREENMEMNKR
I8 JIAME I B IR o

AEBEME(ZZ=—F : ME)BED
2o IR EXBREETRER MRS - A
FEBRBESE  BRFoMNAERNE
2 o ARERHEN WM EHBBLT

— IEMAZE @ BIEHEERERLS - EPCHH
BUAKHEE T ©

- HEEREHEH(THREHES]
BRERNEERFBE T RFHELRY
BEETTMITEREMN - YAEFHEZ
ELHRES -

BEEHEZERERLT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2022 — &= — 44

113



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS R 2R M=t )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6 WAKRDERE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Information is presented on the basis of business segments, BEBHEEEZT|ERE - DEMAK
segment revenue and results are based on the revenue and EETRBIEMP R - THERSHEKHI
gross profits of IEM Solutions and CSP Business. ARENGTE -

2022 2021

—E-CE —FT-—

IEM CSP IEM CSP
Solutions  Business Il Solutions  Business Total

THER TR
EM5ER S#HEK Ol EMEE DR st
LR T ORS00 RVB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETT IS SmiWN:: S

Revenue N

Timing of revenue recognition W A TSRS

At a point in time RE—RFR2 448,883 177,741 626,624 397,097 163,446 560,543
Over time E—RERR - - - 12,100 - 12,100
Total wast 448,883 177,741 626,624 409,197 163,446 572,643
Cost of sales HEMAR (313,125)  (130,427) (443,552) (260,746) (119,916)  (380,662)
Gross profit EF 135,758 47,314 183,072 148,451 43,530 191,981

Depreciation and amortisation A SHE R AR

included in cost of sales & R 4,382 5,353 9,735 7,440 7,085 14,525
The reconciliation of depreciation and amortisation included FTAHERANITE REIENGEITER
in cost of sales to consolidated depreciation and amortisation HEERERMT ¢
is as follows:

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Cost of sales HERA 9,735 14,525
Administrative and other operating expenses 17 [z H {th & @ 52 9,174 9,626
18,909 24,151

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R R M )
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

The Group does not allocate any specific assets or
expenditures for property, plant and equipment to the
operating segments as these assets are managed on a
group basis and the chief operating decision maker does
not use such information to measure the performance of the
reportable segments.

No geographical segment analysis is presented as
substantially all revenue and gross profit of the Group are
attributable to the PRC.

6 WARZDE®E (&)

AEEWEAYE - BE KR ED EEM
FREESRXEZKENE  TARZSE
BERSBELER  AXELERKA
WEFERBBEERNGERS DRHRR

HRAREBARI D WA REFIGHKE F
- FI A B2 50 D BT o

7 OTHER NET INCOME/(LOSS) 7 HtWA (B8R BE

2022 2021

—E-= =%

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T AREFIT

Interest income from financial institutions KB & BEERNF B U A 13,698 920

Refund of value added taxes (“VAT”) BER ([BER R - 1,329
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BB REERN

equipment g 16 679

Property, plant and equipment written off WEEE - WE KR - (9,201)

Change in financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFAEBTZAN

TREEY - 2,135

Government grants BB E 2,110 700

Others Hith 1,493 (1,709)

17,317 (5,147)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS R 2R M=t )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

8 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

8 BRBLAIER!

BREBBDEFE M (GEA) -

2022 2021
—E-— - 3

—_—=— —_= =

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

() Finance costs: BATSRA -
Interest on borrowings BEFRE 27,692 25,758
Finance charges on leases liabilities HEBENREER - 1,654
27,692 27,412
(i) Staff costs: BIRA :
Contributions to defined contribution REFETURIK
retirement plans FT B 8,956 8,483
Equity-settled share-based payment LARERR S E RIS 17D
expenses (note 23) A (FsE23) 2,863 2,967
Salaries, wages and other benefits e FREAMER 73,593 71,624
85,412 83,074
(i) Other items: Hfb1g g :
Amortisation of intangible assets B E Y 382 138
Depreciation e 18,527 24,013
Auditors’ remuneration ZE A & 1,800 1,800
Short-term lease expenses EHHEERY 1,241 623
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss HNE (Uzs),/ B RIFRE (40) 904
Cost of inventories (note 17(b))* FERA(ME17(0)) 438,982 372,012
*  Cost of inventories includes RMB45,818,000 (2021: t GFERABIEARKE45818000T (=T =—

RMB56,572,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation (including
depreciation of the ROU assets) and amortisation expenses, which
amount is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above or in notes 8(ii) and (iii) for each of these types of
expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R R M )
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEHRBIN  UAREFE)
9 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 9 HREeBEEREMEZEWERPHER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND B
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement (@) reEEREMEEKERPHH
of profit or loss and other comprehensive ==
income represents:
2022 2021
—E-= =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBTT
Current tax BPEATH IE
Provision for PRC income tax for the year AR Bl F15 57 B 424 943
Under-provision in respect of prior year i@ EERBET T 608 615
Deferred tax ELEBR
Origination and reversal of temporary EENERERER
differences
— Withholding tax (note (iv)) —TEHEL (P E(v) (3,035) 81)
— Others —Hh 4,000 82,738
1,997 84,215
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BEB X ERBAKR R ENE T

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

A AR

2022 2021
—E—= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Profit before taxation R 7 A 32,088 96,676
Notional tax on profit before taxation, HEAR B EREEAT
calculated at the rates applicable in the KT E HIBRT A s F &Y
jurisdictions concerned HEIE 8,022 24,169
Tax effect of PRC preferential tax FEBE EAFER
treatments (note (iii)) TS 22 2 (B aEi) (1,983) (1,338)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ~ NAJ 1B HOFi T8 22 &8 1,448 85,047
Tax effect of non-taxable income BAERBIRARB G2 (3,925) (24,009
Utilisation of previously recognised tax B @1F 2 FER AT TEE 18
losses (note 24(d)) (FfisE24(d)) (1,652) (537)
Under-provision in respect of prior years @81+ F/E BB 2 608 615
Others Hith (521) 268
Income tax expense FriSEi > 1,997 84,215
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EHAIN -

AAREEHE)

9 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes:

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands or the BVI.

No provision has been made for Profits Tax in Hong Kong
and Corporate Taxes in Indonesia and Spain as the Group
did not earn any income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
and did not earn any taxable profit subject to Indonesia and
Spain Corporate Taxes during each of the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

PRC income tax

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its
implementation regulations, provision for PRC income tax of
the Group is calculated based on the statutory income tax
rate of 25% except for Boer (Wuxi) Power System Co., Ltd.*
(“Boer Wuxi”), which is qualified as High and New Technology
Enterprise, and is therefore entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15%.

Dividends withholding tax

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its
implementation regulations, dividends receivable by non-
PRC corporate residents from PRC enterprises are subject
to withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless reduced by tax
treaties or arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January
2008. In addition, under the Arrangement between Mainland
China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for
the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal
Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income and its relevant
regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident will be liable for
withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend income derived
from the PRC if the Hong Kong tax resident is the “beneficial
owner” and holds 25% or more of the equity interests of the
PRC company. Deferred tax liabilities have been provided for
based on the expected dividends to be distributed from these
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future in respect of the profits
generated since 1 January 2008.

The English translation of the company name is for reference
only. The official name of this company is in Chinese.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments are as follows:

10 EEf 2

EEMEHIIT

Basic salaries, Contributions Equity-settled

allowances to retirement  share-based
and other benefit payment
Fees benefits scheme expenses
X558 DY 5
2R BAER  AENKRG
e H bR B FH%H @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARtz AR¥Tn ARETr AR%TR
Year ended 31 December 2022 HZE-F-—&
TZA=t-HLEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Qian Yixiang BRREE - - 29 - 29
Ms. Jia Lingxia Bient - - 29 - 29
Mr. Zha Saibin BEWEE - - % 1,051 1,076
Mr. Qian Zhongming BimREE - - - - -
Mr. Yu Wai Ming RESHEA - 725 16 - 4
Independent Non-executive BUHRTEE
Directors
Mr. Tang Jianrong ERELE 104 - - - 104
Mr. Qu Weimin EREREE 104 - - - 104
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk BREEE 104 - - - 104
Total st 312 725 99 1,051 2,187
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)

g s LT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHAI  UARBEE)

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

10 ESME(F)

Year ended 31 December 2021 HZE-ZE--£

TZA=+-ALEE
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Qian Yixiang BRREE - 6 23 = 29
Ms. Jia Lingxia BAENT - 6 23 = 29
Mr. Zha Saibin BEIWRE - 5 20 1,664 1,689
Mr. Qian Zhongming BMREE - - - - -
Mr. Yu Wai Ming REHEE
(appointed on 8 January 2021) (R=B=—-%-ANA
BZfT) - 696 15 - 711
Independent Non-executive BUFHTEE
Directors
Mr. Tang Jianrong BRELE 9 - - - 9
Mr. Qu Weimin EREREE 9 - = = 9
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk PREEEE 9 - - - 99
Total it 297 713 81 1,664 2,755

During both years, no discretionary bonus was paid or
payable by the Group to any of the Directors.

During both years, no amount was paid or payable by the
Group to any of the Directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 10 ESME (&
During the year, four Directors waived their emoluments as FR - NZEERERSOMME - FHE

follows:

FIgn

Basic salaries,

allowances
and other
Period during which the emoluments accrued benefits
EXFHE
EEER
PESHN S 23R Ht g R
RMB’000
AR¥ETT
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Qian Yixiang ERAEAE 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
B F—RB—HEZE--F+=A=+—H 1,035
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEEELT 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
B —F—RB—HEZE--F+=A=+—H 828
Mr. Zha Saibin EEWRE 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
B —F—RB—HEZE--F+=A=+—H 828
Mr. Qian Zhongming  $£{HBRE A 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
B —F—RB—HEZE--F+=A=+—H 828
Total FEES 3,519
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R =T @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

11 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 11 RSEl€ A+

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two FEESMEeALH  EbhmA(ZT——
(2021: two) of them are directors whose emoluments are F:MB)REE - BENMS I E108
disclosed in note 10. The aggregate of the emoluments in B-#T=%(ZTB=-_—%:=8%)ATH
respect of the remaining three (2021: three) individuals are as e 4@EENT -

follows:

2022 2021
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T

Salaries and other emoluments e REMEE 2,800 1,975
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes  RRIEFI 5T 24tk 88 35
2,888 2,010
The emoluments of the three (2021: three) individuals with =R(Z2=—F: ZR)maMe ALz
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: B EE T -
2022 2021
—E—= — T4
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE ABL
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £%1,000,000% 7T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE
1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
3 3
During both years, no discretionary bonus was paid or PREEENRXN @ AEBWED N ERNTE
payable by the Group to any of the five highest paid M AEZ BRSNS ATEEREYBIEAL ©
individuals.
During both years, no amount was paid or payable by PREEENRN » REBIWED N EMNE
the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as MAELZEae AT ERRIE - EAN
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as BAREENMBEAREERNES S EARE
compensation for loss of office. B E o
There was no arrangement under which any of the five EFERXN AN AEZZSMES A THER R
highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any RERRENMENTH (S - —F :
emolument during the year (2021: Nil). ) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R R M )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BREF

(a) Basic earnings per share (a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB30,231,000 (2021: RMB12,142,000)
and the weighted average of 758,781,000 ordinary
shares (2021: 757,426,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

BRELRBF
SRERBFTIRIEAR R A R E
s F A R #30,231,0000 (— &2 = —
£ AR¥12,142,0007T) R ERND 3
17 % 8 I h0 4 15 2 758,781,000 fi%
—ET - —£ : 757,426,0000% ) 5+ & &0
™

BRERMEFIH

2021
=%
‘000
TFh&
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BBE%ETH
Rl 773,769 773,769
Effect of shares held for share award RIER D BT 2 A
scheme (note 23) f&f H R2 2 (B 5E23) (14,988) (16,343)
Weighted average number of ordinary W+ A=+—HBH
shares at 31 December TR A INAE S & 758,781 757,426
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREBERF

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during
each of the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
and therefore, diluted earnings per share is the same as
the basic earnings per share.

HE_Z-_—_FR-F-_—F+=A
S+—HIESFETEABESE NN
B ANESRESRFAERELRE
FIFEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
i EE T )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHAI  UARBEE)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% - MERRE

Cost: A
At1 January 2021 W-E--%-f-A 217,697 89,560 5411 212 339,789 37441 4220 62,159 103,820 443,609
Addttions RE - 2,774 1,025 - 3799 - - - - 3799
Disposdls it - oY 6)  Be  (12%) = = = N #%)
Writen of i 29,059 = - U (3080 = (69%) = B 1,701
Disposalof subsicares HEHBAT 005 (14437) 73 @0 (162%) S B3y @19 65489 (81719
At 31 December 2021 and RZE=-§
1 January 2022 +-A=+-Bk

“Z--%-A-B 187,738 74,933 5,302 21,252 289,315 3744 - - 37441 326,756
Addttions AE - 3,009 134 483 3,626 - - - - 3,626
Disposals i - - (182) - (182) - - - - (182)
At 31 December 2022 WoB--%

+-F=t-A 187,738 71,942 5,344 21,735 292,759 3744 - - 37441 330,200
Accumulated depreciation:  Z3i7E
At 1 January 2021 WZZ--%-f-H 96,958 67,391 5,354 19,752 189,455 7,567 1,024 12,133 20,724 210,179
Charge for the year ERITE 8,703 5,089 211 583 15,186 787 M7 1,672 2,826 18,012
Written back on disposals HERR - (3,340) (571) (1,278) (5,189) - - - - (5,189)
Writen of i (21599) = = 6 @16 = (69%) s 6% (22500
Disposal of subsiciaries HENBAF - (3.831) (370) (276) (4411) - (45  (13805)  (14350)  (18827)
M31Decomber 2021and  HZF-—F

1 January 2022 TZA=+-Bk

“3--%-f-B 84,062 65,909 4,624 18,776 17331 8,304 - - 8,304 181,675
Charge for the year ERfE 8,886 2,102 26 564 1,718 749 - - 749 12,521
Written back on disposals HERD - - (166) - (166) - - - - (166)
At 31 December 2022 W%

+-h=+-A 92,948 68,011 4,684 19,340 184,983 9,053 - - 9,053 194,036
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 December 2022 W-E--%

+-h=+-A 94,790 9,931 660 2,395 107,776 28,388 - - 28,388 136,164
At 31 December 2021 W%

+-A=1-A 103,676 9,024 768 2476 115,944 29,137 - - 29,137 145,081

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R =T @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(C
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

ONTINUED)

Buildings are situated on leasehold land with medium-
term lease of 50 years in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2022, certain buildings with carrying
amount of RMB64,851,000 (2021: RMB32,685,000)
have been pledged to bank as security for bank loan
(note 20(c)).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group was in the process
of obtaining the property ownership certification in
respect of certain properties located in the PRC with net
book value of RMB28,388,000 (2021: RMB29,137,000).

Prepaid leasehold land

The Group’s land is located in the PRC, and the Group is
granted with land use rights for a period of 50 years. As
at 31 December 2022, the land use rights with carrying
value of RMB27,983,000 (2021: RMB24,013,000) have
been pledged to a bank as security for bank loans (note
20(c)).

13 % - BMERKRE(E)

(a)

URPEEEL M FNETFTAF0F
FREAREAY -

b) A—E-_—_F+-_A=+—H &&

(c)

(d)

EERRTREETEREAARE
64,851,000c(Z &= —F : ARM
32,685,0007T) WIETF « 1EREUSRTT
EE A G (FEE20(c)) °

RZBE-_—F+-A=+—H  K&E8
ERLEAIR R BIRE T Y IR Y ST
BHERE ZEVENEEFERAR
08 388,000 L(ZE = —4F : ARK
29,137,0007T) °

FANHEE L
AEEBNTHARTE  MAEER
B T AES0E - RZT = —
F+-A=1+—8B FEEABARE
27,983,000 (- —F : ARM
24,013,0007T ) By - b A E IR T
817 - EABUSIRITE KA T (MY
$20(c)) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R =T @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

s -

AAREEHE)

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14 REYHE

2022 2021
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Cost: R :
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BE+-_A=+—H 122,457 122,457
Accumulated depreciation: EiirE
At 1 January n—H—H 31,434 25,433
Charge for the year FARIE 6,000 6,001
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 37,434 31,434
Impairment: A :
At1Januaryand 31 December W A-HARY-A=¥Y—H 2600 2,600
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December nNt+=—A=+—H 82,423 88,423

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Group’s investment properties consist of residential,
commercial and industrial properties situated in the
PRC. Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. In
2022, no impairment loss (2021: Nil) was charged to the
statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income.

The fair value of the investment properties was
RMB114,701,000 (2021: RMB110,468,000) as at 31
December 2022, which is determined by reference
to comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market with adjustments to reflect the condition
and locations of the related properties.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group was in the process
of obtaining the property ownership certificate in respect
of investment properties located in the PRC with net
book value of RMB66,515,000 (2021: RMB70,258,000 ).

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
—Z— —4F4F%H Annual Report 2022

(a)

(b)

(c)

REFEREYESIEUATEAEE
RERTEYE - EWETIARAN
B 2EHTE MR ERTERETIE - R=F
—oF  VEREEE(CZE—F:
)N B M E M 2 IR SR -

RZBZZF+=-A=+—H0 " 25K’
EMENNFERAREE114,701,000
T(ZZE=Z—F : AR#%¥110,468,000
T0) c BEEATFEDILEREME G
FA B ERHER 5 (K )EET -
VAR B AR B ZE AR S K b B o

RZE_—_F+-_A=+—8H ' ~5£E

IESLEM R BRI E Y E IRV
EHRE - ZEVMENEEFEAAR
#66,515,000C(ZFE=—F : ARK
70,258,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

156 BIVEE

Software Trademarks Total
204 EE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETrT ARETET
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2021 W-_ZE-_—F—H—H 1,053 2,459 3,512
Additions INE 137 - 137
Exchange adjustments [E 5 A% - (247) (247)
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—4F
and 1 January 2022 +=—A=+—H
r—E-_—_F—H—H 1,190 2,212 3,402
Exchange adjustments FE 28 - 62 62
At 31 December 2022 A ——
+—-—A=+—8 1,190 2,274 3,464
Accumulated amortisation: g
At 1 January 2021 N—_ZE-_—F—H—H 700 1,599 2,299
Charge for the year F AN 103 35 138
Exchange adjustments PE H A% - (163) (163)
At 31 December 2021 NZE-—4F
and 1 January 2022 +=-A=+—H
—E-_F#—AF—H 803 1,471 2,274
Charge for the year FNE 106 276 382
Exchange adjustments E H - 54 54
At 31 December 2022 N-E-——4F
o T=A=t—-8 0 1801 2,710
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2022 R-E=——
+—A=+—8 281 473 754
At 31 December 2021 P ——
+—-A=+—8 387 741 1,128
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R R M )
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
in 2022 and 2021 which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
establishment fully paid-up

Name of company and operation capital

AL/ KL BEETRARE

NRER RiEEHE BRI

Cheering Success Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong 1,000 shares of

P ERARA EERLEE/ US$1 each

Bk 1,000 BHREE
1ETRG

Power Investment (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong 100,000 shares or

BERE(ER)ERAR B HK$100,000

100,0008%
£100,000%7T

Boer Wuxi (note (j) PRC US$71,000,000

IBE & (RizH) HE 71,000000£7

Boer (Yixing) Power System PRC US$16,250,000
Co., Ltd.* (‘Boer Yixing’) (note (i) i 16,250,000%7T

BE(ER)ENREERAR
(TEEEE]) (k)

Yixing Boai Automation Complete PRC RMB110,000,000
Sets of Equipment Co., Ltd.* hE ARE
(*Yixing Boal") (note (i) 110,000,0007C

HEELEBHERBERAT
(TEEEI ) (FzH))

Boer Cloud Technology Company Limited.* ~ PRC HK$5,983,725
(“Boer Cloud") (note (i) HE 5,983,725/70

BEENRERAR(MBEZ]) (M)

Boer Wuxi Tezhong Electrical PRC RMB60,000,000
Capacitor Co., Ltd.* & ARE
(Boer Tezhong”) (note (i) 60,000,000

BERHHEE NERE
BRAA[BERE]) ()

Sydenham (Wuxi) PRC US$8,000,000
Switch Co., Ltd.* (note () e 8,000,000 7T

EEH (5 FE
BRAF (M)

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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2022
o

P

Direct

EE

100%

16 RHIBATINIKRE
TREHIAR_ZE=_—

FR-ZT - —FH

AEEXE  BEKABEAERZENN

BRAAEEE - BRR A A -

BRI E R -

Proportion of
equity interest
attributable to the Company
KD FEEREL
2021
-8--f
Indirect Direct Indirect

3 EE i

- 100% =

100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%

BT B dn

Principal activities
TEXH

Investment holding

RAER

Investment holding

Design, manufacture and
sale of electrical distribution
equipment

Rt BERBERERE

Design, manufacture and
sale of electrical distribution
equipment

Rt BEREERERE

Design, manufacture and
sale of electrical distribution
equipment

- RERHERERE

Provision of energy
efficiency solutions

A IEATES

Design, manufacture and sale
of capacitors
fit BEREEERS

Manufacture and sale
of components and
spare parts

BERBETHREN



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
i EE T )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHAI  UARBEE)

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 RMIB A TWKRE (&)
(CONTINUED)

2022
—E-CF
Direct Indirect

BB
Temper Energy Intemational, Spain 1,317,235 shares - 100% = 100% Trading of components
S.L. (“Temper Energy”) [iiizs of EUR3.1 each and spare parts
Temper Energy International, 1,317,235 &% ThHEZHEE
S.L.(ITemper Energy ) EfE3 BTk
Boer (Wuxi) Software Technology Limited* PRC HK$50,000,000 - 100% - 100% Development and
(note () T 50,000,000/ 7T sale of software
BE(ES)RHRHEERAR R RHERE
(FizE))
Boer Power System Jiangsu Co., Limited* PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100% - 100% Trading of components and
(note (i) e AB%10,000,0007 spare parts
BEBNZRIHARAT THREHEE
(Fiz()
Notes: HiEt
()  These entities are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in () ZEERARTERINERETIEGBEED
the PRC with limited liability. o

(i)  These entities are limited companies established in the PRC. (i) ZEERARPBEKZMNAREEDF -

The English translation of the company names is for reference only.
The official names of these companies are in Chinese.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS R 2R M=t )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

17 INVENTORIES

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

17 78
(a) MEMBRARANEEBIE :

2022 2021
—E-= =%

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREBTT

Raw materials R 23,806 28,087
Work in progress R 78,084 75,493
Finished goods RIAK B 34,137 47,675
136,027 151,255

(b) BREBIHW T AEBZNEFESHE
DWW :

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in
profit or loss is as follows:

2022 2021

—E-= =%

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARETIT

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENREE 438,982 372,064
Write down of inventories FEHOR - (52)
438,982 372,012

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 FEWWE 5 R H AR

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%ET T ARBT T

Trade receivables (gross) FEUNE 5 BR TR AREE 2,213,202 2,194,868
Less: allowance for impairment losses B REEERE (1,626,556) (1,648,150)
Trade receivables (net) JEWE SR FE 586,646 546,718
Bills receivable* RN Z= 10,891 5,186

Prepayments, deposits and FENFHIE - HE2 Rk

other receivables Hofh pE Y ERIE 17,674 27,810

615,211 579,714
*  Bills receivable represent bank acceptance bills in the PRC which * EREBRERAFES AR MR EREA T E

are measured at FVOCI (see note 26(g)). RITHRH RIR(RKEE26(6))

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS R 2R M=t )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Ageing analysis of trade receivables

(b)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade receivables based on the invoice date and net
of allowance for impairment losses, is as follows:

18 BEWE 5 R H iR (&)

(a) FEIE 5 EEIER D47
BE2 Bk - MUE SERNERD
BT (R B A R R E AR R )
W :

2022 2021
—E—-_— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Within 3 months TR=1EA 196,044 195,396
Over 3 months but within 6 months BiBE=FEAEBTEEAR 136,981 100,102
Over 6 months but within 1 year BENERAETE—F 201,959 193,808
Over 1 year FRiB—F 51,662 57,412

586,646 546,718

The Group generally grants a credit period of 30 to 90
days to its customers.

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly.

The movements in the impairment allowance are as
follows:

AEE-—RAEEFE T0E0HH
SEH -

(b) R E S IR AVRE
FE U 55 AR 5K 0 IR 1L U 1 LA 188 B R
8% BROFAKBEEM AR AR
FIBRERIR - FELIERT - BIBUER
IBE R R WS Z IR -

RERREBOT -

2022 2021
—E-= T

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

At 1 January R—A—H 1,648,150 1,784,134
Provision of impairment losses TBEEBERE 1,200 4,970
Uncollectible amounts written off i sE AT Uk Bl & 58 (22,808) (126)
Disposal of subsidiaries LS B AT - (140,805)
Exchange adjustments e 3, R B 14 (23)
At 31 December W+-—A=+—H 1,626,556 1,648,150
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS R 2R M=t )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 BERREEEY
(a) Cash and cash equivalents are cash at bank (@) HERRELEBEYARITRFER
and in hand &

2022 2021
—E-— - 3

—_—=<— —_= =

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

Cash and bank balances* & RIRTTEERR 338,479 295,383

Less: Pledged deposits*™* B BT (278,685) (217,648)

Cash and cash equivalents HeERREEEY 59,794 77,735

* As 31 December 2022, the cash and bank balances of the * RIZIEZZF+ZA=+—8 " Kr&E
Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB335,207,000 NMARKGENRS RIRTEHAAR
(2021: RMB293,911,000). Remittance of the RMB funds out #335,207,000L(Z 2= —%F : AR¥
of the PRC is subject to the restrictions under the Foreign 293,911,0007T) ° M BEIEIMNEH AR
Exchange Control Regulations of the PRC. BB & A B IMNE B R RBIAR $IFTAR

R -

**  Bank deposits have been pledged to banks for bank loans = RITERAREIRRITER(MEE20(0)) -
(note 20(c)), bank acceptance bills issued to suppliers and MEERELRNRITEAEEERARPIE
quality guarantee issued to customers. HREEER -

(b) Reconciliation of pledged deposits to the (b) EERFEFEREFSUBERRARE
consolidated statement of financial position: AR :

2022 2021
—=E=—= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Current assets MENEE 168,685 157,648
Non-current assets ERBEE 110,000 60,000
278,685 217,648

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS R 2R M=t )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

SN AAREFHE)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to

19 RERRSEEY(E)

(c) BRBIANENRELEREENREHN

cash generated from operations: YEE :
2022 2021
—=E_— —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR¥T T ARBT T
Profit before taxation BRA AT ) 32,088 96,676
Adjustments for: FTOSIEMEL A% -
- Change in financial assets — AT ER A B
at FVTPL WemEEZS 7 - (2,139)
— Amortisation of intangible assets — A E 8i(ii) 382 138
— Depreciation —IE 8iii) 18,527 24,013
— Finance costs — B IS AR 8(i) 27,692 27,412
— Interest income from financial —RETREEN
institutions FLEWA 7 (13,698) (920)
— Net gain on disposal of property, —HEDE BEM
plant and equipment RENE
THER 7 (16) 679)
— Property, plant and equipment —MEE - BE
written off BT 7 - 9,201
— Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss —HNE (Ukzt),/EiE
HE (86) 120
— Provision of impairment loss on —FEREFERE
inventories - 52
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — HEMB AR - (94,0086)
— Provision of impairment losses for —JEINE 5 KM E A
trade and other receivables R HBIEEE
B 18(b) 1,200 4,970
— Equity-settled share-based —UEREEN
payment expenses AL 8li) 2,863 2,967
Changes in working capital: LiEESEE)
— Decrease/(increase) in inventories —FERL, (1) 15,228 (12,612)
— (Increase)/decrease in trade and —EWE 5 KREM
other receivables BRE(3E M),
NERAS (47,762) 108,645
— Increase in trade and other —ENE S REAM
payables BRI N 161,085 211,726
Cash generated from operations KEFTEEIR S 197,503 375,568
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R R M )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(CONTINUED)
(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash

flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

19 RERRSEEY(E)

(d) MEFHELENSEHR

TEFIAEEREEHEESNE Y
B SERSNERSEY - REED

Fimg\f,\jiﬁﬁimh%jzﬂixfﬁimui
HRAEESZEHESRE

DERBE
APELNRERECRE -

Amounts
due to
related
Borrowings  Lease liabilities parties Total
FEf
&g g8 BEArRE Eh)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEETRT  ARMTn  ARMTR
(note 20)
(t20)
Mldneyoeet —— RB-EACR Mo diti el SRR
Changes from financing cash flows: BERETESE
Proceeds from borrowings EEmETE 770,726 - - 710,726
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (841,068) - - (841,068
Payment for interest on borrowings BEFIBAT (25,758) - - (25,758)
Repayment of leass liabities [ERHERE - (4,959) - (4,959)
Repayment of advance from related parties BEEEHDH - - (199,841) (199,841)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERETER DT (96,100) (4,959 (199,841) (300,900)
Other changes: A2
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR (5,176) (3721) = (48,897)
Finance charges on lease liabilties (note 8(i) HE ﬁﬁZgﬂl =GR ) - 1,654 - 1,654
Interest on borrowings (note 8(j) EEFS (M3E80) 25,758 - - 25,758
Todoberconges ... AwReeR asz Al )
December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RoZ--E+-A=1-Ak
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, SECCEAR e - GheRt STeET
Changes from financing cash flows: RERSRERD.
Proceeds from borrowings pEHaE 462,970 - - 462,970
Repayment of borrowings [BRRE (533,388) - - (533,368)
Payment for interest on borrowings EENSHFH (27,692) - - (27,69)
Repayment of advance from related parties S - - (65,879) (65,879)
Todchangesfomnanchngcashfons  BRRGREREEE o s lBATY) (163989
Other changes: b2
Interest on borrowings (note 8() fEERS (M) 21,692 - - 27,69
Touoberconges ... AwReeR age o L.l
At 31 December 2022 R-Z-—_F+-A=1-H 437,708 - 1,082 438,790
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R R M )
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

20 BORROWINGS

20

(a) As of the reporting period, the analysis of the
carrying amount of borrowings is as follows:

B8
(a) E_E;Zéiiﬁﬁﬂﬂi  fEERREED AT

2022 2021
—s—-= = —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Bank loans IRITER
— secured — B 433,338 498,975
— unsecured — 4,370 9,151
437,708 508,126

(b) As of the reporting period, borrowings were

repayable as follows:

(b) BEE2HRHK - BEEBEEEWD :

2022 2021

—E—-= =%

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Within 1 year or on demand —FANIRENK 225,470 411,359
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFA 40,000 57,700
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBRFA 172,238 39,067
437,708 508,126

(c) As of the end of the reporting period,
borrowings were secured by the following

(c) BE2HRUPR - EEHUTEEE
i

assets:

2022 2021
—E-= =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBT T

Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR
(note 13(b)) (MI7E13(b)) 64,851 32,685
Lease prepayments (note 13(d)) T & FRIE (FFE13(d)) 27,983 24,013
Pledged deposits (note 19(a)) HEIRF R (FIEE19(a) 170,000 150,000
262,834 206,698

At 31 December 2022, the effective interest rates of the
borrowings of the Group were in the range from 1.5% to
4.79% per annum (2021: range from 1.5% to 4.65% per

annum).

RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H K
SEEEMNEERFFENF15%E
479% (B - —F : BENF1.5%2
4.65%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS R 2R M=t )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 ENE SR EMERE
2022 2021
—E—= —E %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Trade payables BB SRR 82,785 138,687
Bills payable ENEE 526,946 313,100
Trade and bills payables ENESERERERE 609,731 451,787
Receipts in advance TEWEIR 500 3,241
Other payables and accruals HE AR ERE R 36,124 30,242
646,355 485,270

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year.

Receipts in advance at 1 January 2022 had been fully
recognised as revenue in 2022 and its balance as at 31
December 2022 is expected to be recognised as revenue
within the 12 months after the reporting date.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade and bills payables is as follows:

FIBRMNE S REMERERAR —FAE

=E
/B °

RZE-_—F— A —HNBYRZKEBEERZ
T _FRYEERAERE MERZ=Z
T+ A=+ BHRESRTBERNERE
AHERT& 1218 A AR A -

REMRIK - BAE S RRERENO KRR
ST

2022 2021
—g=—= T

—_— =

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

Due within 1 month or on demand —{@ B AR HIE IR E Sk 211,381 208,187
Due after 1 month but within 3 months — 1@ A&E =18 AR E| = 197,000 100,000
Due after 3 months but within 6 months —{BA%&ESEAAEIE 201,350 143,600

609,731 451,787
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R =T @)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

22 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company participate
in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme (the
“Scheme”) organised by the PRC municipal government
authorities whereby these PRC subsidiaries are required to
make a contribution at rates from 19% to 20% (2021: 19%
to 20%) of the eligible employees’ salaries to the Scheme.
The Group has accrued for the required contributions which
are remitted to the respective social security offices when
the contributions become due. The social security offices are
responsible for making the benefit payments to the retired
employees covered under the Scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions
to the plan vest immediately.

The employees under the Group’s Spanish subsidiary
are regulated by law to participate in the State Pension
Scheme. The State Pension Scheme is part of the social
security system in Spain which is governed by the Ministry of
Employment and Social Security of the Spanish Government.
The Group and the employees are required to make
mandatory contributions towards the State Pension Scheme
at rates of 31.4% and 6.35% (2021: 31.4% and 6.35%),
respectively, of the employee’s relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of EUR4,070.10 (2021:
EUR4,070.10). The minimum contribution period to qualify
for the retirement benefit is 15 years, with a full pension
attainable after 37 years and 3 months years (2021: 37 years
and 3 months) of contribution.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment
of pension benefits beyond the contributions described
above.

22 EERNEF

REMFEMNRETE

B BRI THRAI RSEAF - ANRFH
FEREMBAREZLMAPETRFE BK
SRR TE SRR EFIFTEI([ZEE) -
Bt - ZEHENBARBKSERES
FE19%E20% (=T = —%F : 19%=20%)
MZETEEH MR - AEEE REREIHE
BrSdeRERSNERMNOER - 1
SREBEEERZTERETHRKES
SER] o

REETRIE R B8 B M AE S &G
BEXEBERBEHEENE SRR
NIESFTE([aEE5TE)) - BFESFTE
BHBYSZEAETENRERIEKRT
gl o RiERESHE BEXRHEESE
ARFEIMER - EREREEEBAKAN
5% ' METNS B S A B A 30,0004 7T
B _EBR o mogiE e EIEL KA &
BEBAL -

ANEE R TR B A R E B IRAHIR
E2HEARENRETE - BREAREEE
BEBRTFHSREBZNES X5 - H
REALSREFRAMFRFEE - &
SENKEREEFMRFTRASFEEFE
H3 o HREH R AEEBERARSG.4%
K6.35%(ZF=——%F : 31.4%K%6.35%) °
NS HEIBE AMEEA4,070.108T(=
T —1%F : 4,070.10BT) W EBR - FFEER
REFNSEERFEH A1 - HERS7
FRIEMA(ZZT=_—4F : I7TFEZT3@AA)%
RS2 RENKRE -

AEBRR EXFT B BRI - RBKRER
MRS ELEELBEANRL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R R M )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

23 SHARE AWARD SCHEME 23 R B2

The share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was
approved by the Board on 17 June 2021 (the “Adoption
Date”) under which shares of the Company may be awarded
to selected employees in accordance with its provisions. The
Share Award Scheme operates for 10 years starting from the
Adoption Date. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected employee under the Share Award
Scheme in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued shares as at the Adoption Date (being 7,737,690
shares).

A trust has been set up and fully funded by the Company for
the purpose of purchasing, administrating and holding the
Company’s shares for the Share Award Scheme. The total
number of shares purchased by the trustee under the Share
Award Scheme must not exceed 10% of the issued shares as
at the Adoption Date (being 77,376,900 shares).

Movement in the number of shares held under the Share
Award Scheme is as follows:

BEEgR T F~A+EAER
BE ) #tER D EBFH 8] ([ A (D 22 B &t
g11) - Bt - ARBRD AR E G
TREERNES - R EBFEIEER
HEFEMABRARTF - RERDER
FHEIA R+ =& A HAfE 7] (1) — & 3% h
EEEEMRMNEE LR - THBBRE
4N HEAB TR B91% - BN7,737,6908% A%

,f/\ ®

KABBERIY—IBEF - WHZEREH
HE - UEE EBLEBEEERGEE
SFEIMARRIRG o LFEARERG ZE
EEEMRDEBETSBERRMEHE
BT EI10%  B177,376,900/% 8% 5 ©

R I 8IS B0 A B E 2B
T

2022 2021
—E-C T —F
Number of Number of
shares held Amount shares held Amount
PR D8R 8 WiEstirC! &8
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
TR ARBTR T AREBTFT
At 1 January m—A—H 16,343 74,939 24,343 100,121
Shares granted to a Director FART—%
and employees EEKEE
and fully vested during T EHEED
the year fhdn) (11,500) (2,863) (8,000) (25,182)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 4,843 72,076 16,343 74,939
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

23 SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
granted 11,500,000 shares to a Director and employees
of the Company which were vested during the year (2021:
8,000,000 shares). Details are as follows:

Number of
shares

Grant date awarded

Vesting date

5 September 2022 5 September 2022 4,000
T _FNARE ZT-_FhARHA
29 December 2022 29 December 2022 7,500
—E-F T F
+=—A=+hA +=ZA=+hA
6 May 2021 6 May 2021 4,000
—E-—FRHANE —E-—FHAXH
28 December 2021 28 December 2021 4,000
—E-—F T —F
+=—A=+N\H +=RA=+)\H

23 R R8I (F

BE-_ZE-_—_F+-_B=+—HIFE "
AKRARAARAI—ZEERREERD
11,500,000/% f% 7 * Z ERMHERF AL
B(=—Z——4% : 8,000,000/ ) - £15
IR

Equity-settled
share-based

payment
Number of Average expense
shares fair value recognised in
vested per share 2022 and 2021
N
E=—ZE=——
=700 FEARG
FHAFE EE
RMB RMB’000
ARHE ARMT T
4,000 0.26 1,051
7,500 0.24 1,812
4,000 0.42 1,664
4,000 0.33 1,303

The fair value of the shares awarded on the grant date was
determined by reference to a number of factors including the
market price of the Company’s shares.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Company had not purchased any of the Company’s existing
shares on the market for the purpose of the Expired Scheme
and the New Scheme.

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents:

Provision for PRC income tax

BT 1S B s

RELBHERBRONAFELZEARAR
AR MESZERRET °

BE_Z-_—_FR=-F=-—F+=A
Zt+—BLFE  ARRWELDEPTE
N8RS LB EARRFMEMIRAE R

,f/'\ ®

24 GEMBRRKRPHFAED

(a) AZREMBIRR R AR IELE

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARBT T
722 290
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
i EE T )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHAI  UARBEE)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) CERRIEEHEEE (EF) :

() Movement of each component of deferred tax () EXEFEEEREEREII HE
assets and liabilities g

FRERGFRE PR AR P ERD

BEFIBEE,/(AE)IH RES

I

24 ZEMHMRRKRPNAEH (F)

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the movements during the
year are as follows:

140

At 1 January 2021 RZE-—F—F—H (3,116) 143,082 195 9,524 149,685
Credited/(charged) to B A/ ()
profit or loss (note 9(a)) (F9() 81 (82,389) 679 (1,028) (82,657)
At 31 December 2021 and RZE--F
1 January 2022 +ZA=+-8k
“T--F-R-H (3,035) 60,693 874 8,496 67,028
Credited/(charged) to PEEEHA/ ()
profit or loss (note 9(a) (Bf59(a)) 3,035 (3,421) 638 (1,217) (965)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF
+-A=1-H - 57,212 1,512 7,219 66,063

(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement
of financial position

(i) HEEHHERRREE

2022
—=—=
RMB’000
ARETT
Deferred tax assets FRIEFIAE = 66,063 70,063
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE - (3,035)
66,063 67,028
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

24 IN

s -

AAREEHE)

COME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(C
(c)

(d)

ONTINUED)
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

As at 31 December 2022, deferred tax liabilities
in respect of temporary differences relating to
undistributed profits of RMB1,306,546,000 (2021:
RMB1,836,800,000) were not recognised as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that those
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
4(l), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
of RMB20,608,000 (2021: RMB27,217,000) in respect
cumulative tax losses as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.
All of these tax losses will expire within 5 years under the
current tax legislation.

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s

24 FE

(c)

(d)

B ER R PRV TG ()

ABERWELERIEEE

R-ZE-_—F+—_A=+—H " EBZSE
KA EHF AR 1,306,546,0007T( —
T ——4& : AR¥1,836,800,0007T)8
@Wg%%ﬁmLkmﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ
2 BERAR I ZEH B AFE

BB - WRRZFGNAERTFARR
RIEETOIK °
REZDRELEHIREE

R IR E4() FTER DI B0 & AT UK - A%
B30 R RET R E R ERIE LR IR E
= AR #20,608,0007T(=F = —4 :

ARM27,217,0007T) - R 2 B &5
1BRIELES Pl R R [ B BRI (5 A P R
mgﬁwgﬁmEHMTgﬁlTﬁ

REBERITHRIGED] - AEZERIREE
HREFRZIH -

25 EX > HERKRE

(a)

BB NEE

AR B A AR S N IV B AR Y
HEFN RO RRE IR - AAR](EH
RN R FNEFLNE S

consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated E]l
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes s
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company AT
Shares Employee
held for share-based Capital
Share ~ share award Share  compensation  redemption  Exchange Retained
capital scheme premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RERR WS
Rt %fiEE  EARE
B&  KENRG  ROEE HegfE e ENGE  REE 3t
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W ARETr  ARETT  ARETR ARETT  ARETT  ARETr  ARETn  ARETR
At 1 January 2021 HW-E-—E-f-p 86010 (100,121) 20710 1505 3n 368 17,968 72980
Total comprehensive income EW%MM
for the year o - - - - - (1,842 (354 (5,384)
Eauity-sefted share-based kBB
ransaction SURY) - - - 297 - - - 2967
Vesting of shares granted under 15 “iﬁ[‘éﬁ HERE
share award scheme ERERG - 2,182 20710) (47 = = = =
At 31 December 2021 R-Z--F
and 1 January 2022 TZR=1+-Rk
“E--%-f-A 66,010 (74,939) - - 3n 45,306) 124,426 70,563
Total comprehensive income AR ENALE
for the year - - - - - 3721 32,017 35,738
Equty-setfld share-based ~ HEREE E‘JHX i
transaction GRS, px} - - - 2,863 - - - 2,863
Vesting of shares granted under  RER( BT EIBE
share award scheme BRERA 28 - 2,863 - (2,863) - - - -
At 31 December R-B_-F
2022 TZA=1-H 66,010 (72,076) - - 312 (41,585) 156,443 109,164
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R =T @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Dividends

The Board does not recommend the payment of any
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: Nil).

(c) Share capital
Details of authorised and issued share capital are as

25 B& -

RmERRE (&)

(b) B2
EEeY TEBMBEE T _—F1+=

ﬂ

+ B 1 R HE R R B AR

TECF )

(c) =A<
FEERBBITIRAFIBOT

follows:
2022 2021
—E—-= =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBTT
Authorised: JETE -
2,000,000,000 shares of 2,000,000,000/%
HK$0.1 each FRXEEO. 178 LA 200,000 200,000
Par Number of Nominal value of
value shares ordinary shares
HE KROHE ZEREE
HK$ ‘000 HK$'000 RMB’000
BIT T FAT ARETT
Issued and fully paid: EZETREE -
At 31 December 2021 and NZE——4F
31 December 2022 +TZA=+—8K
T F
+=—A=+—H 0.10 773,769 77,377 66,010

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company may
be applied for payment of distributions or dividends
to shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Shares held for share award scheme

Shares held for share award scheme comprised
shares purchased and held which will be awarded
to selected employees in accordance with share
award scheme.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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(i)
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RERSHSNRE - ARFAIKRN
i EAR A AR ARSI 72 IR RIK
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R =T @)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Employee share-based compensation reserve

Employee share-based compensation reserve
represents the fair value of employee services in
respect of share granted to certain employees of
the Group.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated
in the PRC are required to appropriate 10% of their
after-tax-profit (after offsetting prior year losses) as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of a dividend to
equity owners.

The statutory surplus reserve can be used to
make good prior years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into capital provided that the balance
after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprised the excess on
transfer of equity from non-controlling interests
in Boer Yixing, Boer Wuxi and Yixing Boai over
purchase considerations prior to 1 January 2011.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal
amount of the shares repurchased.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations outside the
PRC which are dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in note 4(m).

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

25 &7 - RERIRE (&)

(d) REOEERARE)

LA 4 2 Y BV B S & 1

PAR A XA RO R B N & A HE B IX
TAKEETRENRDERNE
BIRFEHI D FE

EERE

RIBFBUERMRTE » ARARRTE
RS R ST B A R AR H AR IR
B R R FORREE BRI IR
A (B EFEERIZ)H10%
BELEERMHE  EERHEER
ERGEME RSN KL - BAR
AV AR A A 70 IR ASLB AT B B Rk feh
e

EERMFRE R AAREAEEE
MEBR(NE)  YATEARA - 8
BITRNEHT BRI REME AR
25% °

a1
EXNFRERHEEESR - FEE
B M BRI e IR A S R A
BEA—FT——F—A—BANE
BEREMER -

EXRE#FE
EAEOFEEEBRDEE

(vii) BB R

PE 53 (et B 3R A H A BB SNR S
ISR FEEN —INEZR -
ZREE TR B T4 FTE g 5T
RERIE o

BEEHEZERERLT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2022 — &= — 44

143



144

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R EENEE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Company defines “capital” as including all
components of equity. The Group actively and regularly
reviews and manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. These
risks are limited by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and bills receivable. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

As at 31 December 2022, except for credit impaired
balances with gross amount of RMB1,612,264,000 that
have been assessed individually, the Group measures
loss allowances for trade receivables at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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25 EX > HERKRE(E)
(e) EXER

ARBEEREEARNBRREAREERE
WESREBFHELSEELE  KmE
BEERKFETNEREERAGE
RAERORE @ HESEBIRMEM
MaRARRE SR E e M e

ARBBIERIERSBIEEDRABE
7 o ARETEGNERHEARREET
e MEE - WRREERENZ(CEH
BARRBIELHE -

AR RIHE B A A X5 BB
INE)E IR TE PR I -

26 MR KRER
AEMFAENEE  FPES - XK
SNERMIKEAEEE A S LR - ZZAE
R LA 7K 2 B ) B 75 5 3R B SR A 61 1 BA PR

(a) EERM

AEENEERREIZREERKES
RRMEERERE - ERECHEEER
R URHEESRZEEERR

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 KLz
5 A AR 1,612,264,000 TR B R
BT ETEBIFHEIN - AEERR
HEREEGFEER BHEESENE
B(EMLEERREERETESEL)
STERKE SERAEEEE - ARA
EEBANEESBERTARTRAR
FRMEBEEAZEZEBEEER - A
EERTRFFRHEN BB G &
ERaigikaesE—Fm o o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R =T @)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

26 MR ERE (&)

(a) FERERH)
TREHERAKERE 5 RUGIRRM
HRNEERREEREEEENE

receivables: o
2022
—E—_C
Gross Expected
carrying loss rate Loss
amount allowance
T
[ ES
AR A ()] EEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR®TT
Within 3 months TR=EA 198,024 1% 1,980
Over 3 months but fRE=1{EA
within 6 months BRENEA 139,777 2% 2,796
Over 6 months but within 1 year B3/ EAERNE—F 211,475 4.5% 9,516
Over 1 year (note) iR —F (M) 1,663,926 0-100% 1,612,264
2,213,202 1,626,556
2021
—E-—F
Gross Expected
carrying loss rate Loss
amount (%) allowance
TEHA
B
HEREE (%) EERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Within 3 months AR=EA 197,370 1% 1,974
Over 3 months but A =1E A
within 6 months BRENEA 102,145 2% 2,043
Over 6 months but within 1 year i@/ NEARBBRE—F 202,940 4.5% 9,132
Over 1 year (note) e — (M) 1,692,413 0-100% 1,635,001
2,194,868 1,648,150

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is based on the
invoice date.

Note: ECLs at 0% — Collaterals have been obtained from certain
customers, and typically comprise properties and land. No
impairment loss is provided for the debtor balance when
the collateral has a value greater than the debtor balance.

B PRI Z R DT HENER
B -

Bet - AP ATHRBEERR — BSRE
REETEFPMERD  —REEDE
Kty o R REESNERERZ
R - BN S R AAR R R IE R

BEEERRE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R EENEE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific debtor is
updated.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables are disclosed in
note 18(a).

Bank acceptance bills endorsed to its suppliers
which are not yet due as at 31 December 2022 were
amounted to RMB526,946,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB313,100,000). These bank acceptance bills were
derecognised by the Group (the “Derecognised Bills”).
In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks
default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of
the Directors, the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised
Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated
trade payables. The Derecognised Bills generally have
maturity dates of 180 days, and the Group in general
endorses the bank acceptance bills equivalent to their
face value. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bills are not significant.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 0.2%, 1.2% and
1.5% (2021: 0.5%, 2.6% and 0.8%) of the total
trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest
customer, the five largest customers and largest debtor
as at 31 December 2022. The maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment allowance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management at the Group level

As at 31 December 2022, even though the Group had
net current assets of RMB107,170,000, its short term
bank borrowings amounted to RMB225,470,000 while
the Group maintained its cash and cash equivalents of
RMB59,794,000 only.

In view of such circumstances, the Directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern for at least the
next twelve months from the end of the reporting period
and to meet its obligations, as and when they fall due.
Certain measures have been and are being taken to
manage the Group’s liquidity needs and to improve its
financial position which include, but are not limited to,
the following:

(i) the controlling shareholders, Mr Qian Yixiang and Ms
Jia Lingxia, have undertaken to provide continuing
financial support, including not to recall the amounts
due to them of RMB1,802,000 until the Group is
able to repay its other creditors in the normal course
of business;

(i) the Group has renewed several loan facility
agreements with the controlling shareholders
and their related parties with an effective period
of 3 years. The loans are non-current, unsecured
and non-interest bearing. As at 31 December
2022, the Group’s unused loans facilities were
RMB945,431,000;

26 MR ERE (&)

(b) FRENE SR B

SEEARBESRREE
RZEBE-__F+_A=+—8 " &
EAEBENRHEEFEAARKE
107,170,0007C * B HEHRITEE
B AR #2205 470,000 © AN EE
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity risk management at the Group level
(continued)

(i) as at 31 December 2022, the unused bank loans
facilities were RMB274,230,000 for providing
additional working capital to the Group; and

(iv) during the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group has renewed its short term bank borrowings
of RMB213,483,000 and obtained new borrowings
of RMB224,225,000. The Directors of the
Company, based on their ongoing discussions with
the Group’s bankers, expect the Group’s bankers
to renew the existing bank facilities as they fall due.

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare these consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Liquidity risk management at the entity level

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Board/management of the
entities. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity risk management at the entity level

(continued)

The following table presents the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates) and the

earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

26 MR ERE (&)

(b) FREVE Z R B ()
EREEADESARER(A)

TREGIAEES AR E ER 2 HRPRN
RIS KBIHHR - LRBAKART
BReRE(BEREONXFTENH
BNH) RALH
FRHYEE

8

7=

BEEHAENR

Total More than More than
Carrying  contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
amountat  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
31 December cash flow on demand 2years 5years

Rt=A &f
=t-B  RfERE —Ehg —ENE MENL
HEEE it k] BER BREAR BRELR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARETn  ARMTr  ARMTR
Borrowings [EE 437,708 479,322 230,368 43,335 205,619
Trade and other payables EfE AREME 646,355 646,355 646,355 - -
Amounts due to related parties [EEE R 1,082 1,082 - - 1,082
1,085,145 1,126,759 876,723 43,335 206,701

2021
—E--F

Total More than More than
Carrying contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
amountat  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
31 December cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years

Rt=A &
=B AEBe —ERg —EhE MELLE
HREE MEEE EEX ERENA ERENA
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  AREBTR  ARETR ARETR
Borrowings B8 508,126 526,935 419,542 61,893 45,500
Trade and other payables ENEAREBEN 485,270 485270 485,270 - -
Amounts due to related parties EREEn A 66,961 66,961 - - 66,961
1,060,357 1,079,166 904,812 61,893 112,461
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s
interest rate profile is set out below:

Effective

interest rate

per annum

BRRERZ

Fixed rate instruments:
Borrowings

s
pizciy

1.5% - 4.79%

26 MR ERE (&)
(c) FIZR= B

REBFERBRFEREEMESE ©
RESMBEL 2 EEGAEEFEAT
BENERRE - REBRF RS0
TS @

2021
—E-—F
Effective
Interest rate
per annum

ERERE

RMB’000
ARBTR

RMB'000
ARETTT

437,708  1.5% -4.65% 508,126

Currency risk

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in the
PRC, the Group’s transactions are mainly denominated
in RMB, which is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving
RMB must take place through the People’s Bank of
China or other institutions authorised to buy and sell
foreign exchange. The exchange rates adopted for
the foreign exchange transactions are the rates of
exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China that
are determined largely by supply and demand.

The Group currently does not have a policy on foreign
currency risk as it had minimal export sales in the year
and the impact of foreign currency risk on the Group’s
total sales is minimal.

The management does not expect that there will be any
significant currency risk for the Group for both years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
i EE T )
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(BREHAI  UARBEE)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26 BIEEREE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Fair value (e) AF¥E
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at AREBNETEMEEIRAFE
fair value. The fair value of these financial assets and the 2 ZEeMEEN QT ERAERM
valuation techniques are as follows: N

2022
—E-CF
RMB’000
ARBT T
Bills receivable 10,891 5,186  Level2 Face value Fair value of bills receivable
EhER =R A approximates to their carrying

amounts (i.e. face value of bank
acceptance bills), as the Group

in general endorses the bank
acceptance bills equivalent to their
face value.
ARASRE-RESRENEAER
NRTELRE - HENEENHR
TRELREE(PRTALREN
HiE)EE «
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS R 2R M=t )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

27 SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BME

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value TERETeMEERBENERABERAT
of financial assets and liabilities: (=

27 ZEREASTHNEREEREEBN

Year 2022

Financial assets

B

TEMEE

Financial
assets Financial
at FVOCI assets
—-debt at amortised
instruments cost
BRATEA
Hth 2 mE e RN
ZEeRMEE— BB R
EXITE ZEMEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T AR¥T T
Trade receivables JEUWE B BRFR - 586,646 586,646
Bills receivable FEUNE & 10,891 - 10,891
Financial assets ATATE R R EAM
included in deposits and U IEAY
other receivables TREE - 8,740 8,740
Pledged deposits BHEMFH - 278,685 278,685
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIRESEY - 59,794 59,794
10,891 933,865 944,756
Financial liabilities cRIAE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REBERAR
FilRz SREE
RMB’000
ARBT T
Trade payables FERE S RN 82,785
Bills payable JENEE 526,946
Financial liabilities included in other payables FTAEM R IR K
and accrual ErEANEmEasE 36,124
Borrowings BE 437,708
Amounts due to related parties FET R8s 5 518 1,082
1,084,645
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
p S TELNETE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEARAI - AARBEE)

27 SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 27T RERHEINEMEERERBN
LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (CONTINUED) BE ()
Year 2021 —E-—F
Financial assets LREE

Trade receivables FEUE SRR - 546,718 546,718
Bills receivable R ES:S 5,186 - 5,186
Financial assets FTAEREEAM

included in deposits and RN S RS E

other receivables - 20,382 20,382
Pledged deposits BEFR - 217,648 217,648
Cash and cash equivalents Re MIREEEY - 77,735 77,735

5,186 862,483 867,669

Financial liabilities ==L

Trade payables BB SRR 138,687
Bills payable FERT R 313,000

Financial liabilities included in other payables T A M FERFRIE R
and accrual ERTERNERAR 33,483
Borrowings =3 508,126
Amounts due to related parties FEfT A& 5 508 66,961
1,060,257
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R =T @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

SN AAREFHE)

TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors are
of the view that the following parties are related parties of the

Group:

Name of party
BE SR BB

Mr. Qian Yixiang
BRMEE

Ms. Jia Lingxia
HEELt

King Able Limited
(“King Able”)

Wuxi Boer Power Instrumentation
Company Limited (“Wuxi Boer”)

EBHEEENEEBRAR
(MEiHIBE])

Bright Rise Trading Limited
(“Bright Rise”)

AL SHBERAA
(&2 1)

Boer Smart (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Boer Smart”)

BESE(FE)BRAT
(MEEER]D)

Boer Smart Technology (Wuxi)
Co., Ltd.* (“Boer Smart Wuxi”)

BEEEMNX(ES)BRAR
(MBEEEEH])

28 FEFEARS

BE-T_—G+-A=+—ALFE-
E A 5155 AEEENHY

Relationship

S

Controlling shareholder and Director

ERBIRRES

Controlling shareholder and Director

ERERFRES

Immediate parent of the Group which is 50% owned by each of
Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia Lingxia, both of which are controlling
shareholders and Directors

AEBEHNEREAGE - AERMEERBEZEL T (B RIERRRR
)X BHEAS0%ES

93.34% and 6.66% beneficially owned by Mr. Qian Haosheng, a
close family member of Mr. Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and
a Director and Mr. Qian Zhongming, a Director, and Mr. Tao Linwei,
a family member of Mr. Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and a
Director and Mr. Qian Zhongming, a Director, respectively

DRIRERFLE (ERRRFEFERM T ERESEMALEL
ZEREKE) KA REE(ERRERESERMTERESE
HERSE A 2 REEK B ) B s H93.34% 1 1 )26.66% 5

50% owned by each of Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia Lingxia, both of
which are controlling shareholders and Directors
HERMEERBEEE XL (GRIERBERES) X BEFS0%E
3¢

50% beneficially owned by each of Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia
Lingxia, both of which are controlling shareholders and Directors
HERAEENEEZSEL T (ORAERKRFER) R ELRER
50%Ez

1.30%, 57.26%, 37.33% and 2.67% beneficially owned by Mr. Qian
Yixiang, controlling shareholder and a Director, Ms. Jia Lingxia,
controlling shareholder and a Director, Mr. Qian Haosheng, a close
family member of Mr. Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and a
Director and Mr. Qian Zhongming, a Director, and Mr. Tao Linwei,
a family member of Mr. Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and a
Director and Mr. Qian Zhongming, a Director, respectively
DRRERRRFESERALE  ERRERESEZE XL -
BEAREERBRRRESERMCEREEEMALEZBEER
FERK B) RFABE Rt E (R R R E S HE M ERESRMIAL
EZREKE) BB 1.30% s - 57.26% % - 37.33% Mz K&
2.67% M

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE

— ==

—Z— —4F4F%H Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R =T @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 28 TEBEIRS ()
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Name of party Relationship
BB RE B8 &
Shanghai Changcheng Construction 33.5%, 16.5%, 46.67% and 3.33% beneficially owned by Mr. Qian
Development Company Limited* Zhongming, a Director, Mr. Qian Yixiang, a controlling shareholder
(“Shanghai Changcheng”) and Director, Mr. Qian Haosheng, a close family member of Mr.

Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and a Director and Mr. Qian
Zhongming, a Director, and Mr. Tao Linwei, a family member of Mr.
Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and a Director and Mr. Qian
Zhongming, a Director, respectively

PERWERFAERRAR DRIMEFRMALE ERERRREFERMELE  BETEE
(T EBRH]) (R RREEEFOMEEREERMALRE L ZERENKE) R

PRl A (IR R R E SRR E N E SR MIALE 2R EK
B)E XM E33.5%MeE + 16.5%EZS « 46.67 %S 1 3.33% 25

The English translation of the company names is for reference only.
The official names of these companies are in Chinese.

(a) Financial assistance from related parties (a) REBERS 2B EEE
In addition to the related party information disclosed br Bl 3555 BE A B RN - KEE K
elsewhere above, the Group and the Company entered ARBFIL T EZEBERRS °

into the following material related party transactions.

() Transactions i X%

Cash advances from related parties BBt IR S B
2022 2021
—E-= —E_—%F
Name of party RMB’000 RMB’000
2} yag e AR¥T T AREBTT
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEEu+ 24,336

Settlement of cash advances from related parties

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
Name of party RMB’000 RMB’000
o)yt AR%ET T ARBT T
Mr. Qian Yixiang SR E - 156,426
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEEnT 32,983 -
Wuxi Boer mPIEE 10,083 50,000
Bright Rise BEH - 17,751
King Able BT 22,813 -
65,879 224177
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS R 2R M=t )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 28 TEFEIRS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(a) Financial assistance from related parties (a) REBERS ZBKEB) (&)
(continued)
(i) Transactions (continued) (i) X%(4E)
Net outstanding amounts owed to related parties EREER 2 REEFIEFE
2022 2021
—E—-= =%
Name of party RMB’000 RMB’000
) yap i St AR¥T T ARETIT
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Ms. Jia Lingxia Ve 1,082 34,065
King Able A - 22,813
Wuxi Boer mHIEE - 10,083
1,082 66,961
(i) Loans from related parties (i) BBEFER
Loans facilities granted from related parties mEER BT Z2EZEE
Pursuant to several loan facility agreements BIERRE R ((EAREH)BAKH
renewed in 2022, the related parties as lenders (WEAER )R ZE-__FEFHOH
and the Group as borrower, loan facilities were HEFEERS  A5BERER
granted to the Group for its general working capital REFE—REEESRE -
purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R R M )
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) Financial assistance from related parties

(continued)
(ii) Loans from related parties (continued)

28 TEBEARS (HF)
(a) REBBER 2B R (&)

(i) BESERE)

Those loans are all unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable according to the terms of

ZEEFY REER - T ERA

R R EE -

agreements.
Name of party 2022 2021
o)y et - 2
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia and BERMTE RMB500,000,000 RMB500,000,000
King Able BEEELTRHEE and and
US$1,393,000 US$1,393,000
AR¥ AR
500,000,0005t  500,000,0007C
53 )53
1,393,000t  1,393,000%7C
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEELT HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000
2,000,000/t 2,000,000/ 7C
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Mr. Qian Zhongming BRMEE RMB300,000,000 RMB300,000,000
and Wuxi Boer BMRLER AR AR
BHEH 300,000,0005t  300,000,0007C
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia and SRR AE RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000
Bright Rise BABATRIER ARH AR
100,000,000t  100,000,0007T
Boer Smart BES RMB35,000,000 RMB35,000,000
AR¥ ARE
35,000,0007C 35,000,0007C
(ii) Unused loans facilities (iii) REBERERE
2022 2021
—E-= —E_—F
Name of party RMB’000 RMB’000
BHAIRE 218 ARET T AREFT
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia and BRMREE
King Able BAELTRAE 510,431 453,639
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Mr. Qian Zhongming SRORLAE ~ BHRRTAE
and Wuxi Boer REBHBE 300,000 289,917
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia and BROREE
Bright Rise BERERTRIER 100,000 100,000
Boer Smart ER 35,000 35,000
945,431 878,556
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
R R M )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

s -

AAREEHE)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial guarantees received from related
parties

At 31 December 2022, borrowings amounting to
RMB155,600,000 were guaranteed by Mr. Qian Yixiang,
Ms. Jia Lingxia and Shanghai Changcheng (2021:
RMB329,100,000).

(c)

Transactions with a related party

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the transactions for the year with a
related party are as follows:

28 TEMEARZ (H)

(b) EZREBES 2MBER

AA —
N
J\_

EZF+ZA=+—8 " AR

155,600,000 ( ZE=Z—F : AR
#£329,100,0007T ) Z & E M SO &

A .

BEABEXE R EBRBEHER -

(c) B—REAELTHNXS

/e
TS ¢

REMBwMAREMBBSARES
FRE-BRETETNXZN

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARETTT
Continuing connected transactions FEEERF(EER
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules B PR 2 AR Al
Governing the Listing of Securities onthe ([ E/#8811)
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”): F14AE) :
— Processing fee income from Boer — REEESESHN
Smart Wuxi (note (i) MIBUWA
(Br3E() 769 1,300
— Purchase from Boer Smart Wuxi — B EREEmGRE
(note (i) (B (i) 6,015 7,353
Notes: Bist -

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the processing subcontracting framework
agreement dated 6 August 2020, Boer Wuxi, Boer Yixing
and Boer Tezhong provided assembly and processing
services for manufacture of intelligent household equipment
to Boer Smart Wuxi amounted to RMB769,000 (2021:
RMB1,300,000).

Pursuant to the purchase framework agreement dated
6 August 2020, Temper Energy purchased intelligent
household equipment from Boer Smart Wuxi amounted
to EUR848,000 (equivalent to RMB6,015,000) (2021:
EUR965,000 (equivalent to RMB7,353,000)).

The above transactions were conducted in accordance with
the terms mutually agreed by both contract parties with
reference to market prices.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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(i)

(i)

BER-_ZF-_FTFN\AXNBHILINE
FSEINTIER G - BHER BHEER
LIS EHEREESEESIEH S
BERAEMMWARRNTRENEEA
AREET69,0007T(Z B —5F : AR
1,300,0007T) °

BERZZE_FTF/N\ASEBMATLH
PREEIE 22 %955  Temper Energy 8 H
BEEDRESERRAEMNSEA
848,000 7T (155 4 A R #6,015,000
JC) (ZZT = —4 : 965,0008 T (HE R
AR#7,353,0007T)) °

LR 5 TRET AR E 2 ETMERE
R B GRBETT ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS R 2R M=t )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 28 FEBEAIRS (&)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(d) Key management personnel remuneration (d TEEEASHMH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEFBTEEEABHM(BIEMEI0
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s BN TARRESNSEE UKL
directors as disclosed in note 10 and certain of the FIEES N TFETESEHMNES
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 11, is as SRR WT :
follows:

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T

Contributions to defined contribution FEEFRIRET IR

retirement plans 336 268
Equity-settled share-based payment At E MR D

expenses (note 23) S (FEE23) 1,051 1,664
Salaries, wages and other benefits e BN RE MR 6,965 5,097

8,352 7,029
(e) The Listing Rules applicable to connected (e) BRAMBERZH LHRA

transactions
The transactions with a related party Boer Smart Wuxi S R () PrEk ER R s TR E A AR 4RSS
in note (c) above constitute connected transactions or B SIEK ETHARRE14AZ TR ER
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter ER S IHEBELS o FHiRAE
14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by VYAEFMRENEREEEINESSY
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the EEHERBEL S -

section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” of
the Report of the Directors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS R 2R M=t )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN - UARKERHE)

29 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 29 AR B HMBMIR R

THE COMPANY
2022 2021
—E—-= == —F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE AR¥T ARET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidieries  KHBAFMRE 6 39,997 39,997
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E R 78,904 38,374
Cash at bank RITIRE 29 26
S 78933 ¢ 38,400
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables HAib A FIE 5 4
Amounts due to related parties FETRRE 5 0E 9,761 7,830
. 9766 7834
Netcurrentassets =~~~ #"BEEFE 69067 30,566
NET ASSETS EEFE 109,164 70,563
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXREE 25(a)
Share capital N 66,010 66,010
Reserves & 43,154 4,653
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 109,164 70,563

30 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 30 H##ZRARBRERT

PARTY

At 31 December 2022, the Directors consider the immediate RZEZZF+-A=1+—H EFRE
parent of the Group to be King Able Limited and the ultimate REBNERGRRI KRG B ZRIERT
controlling party of the Group to be Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. DRAEEBRARMEBRMEERE %
Jia Lingxia. King Able Limited is incorporated in the BVI and EXL HBEAERARIINABERES
does not produce financial statements available for public AR - WEGRRMBREREAREH -
use.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2022 annual general meeting will be held in Hong Kong on Friday, 9 June 2023. Notice
of the 2022 annual general meeting will be issued and dispatched to the shareholders in due
course.

PUBLICATION OF FINAL RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT AND ANNUAL REPORT

The Company’s annual results announcement is published on the website of the Stock
Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at www.boerpower.com.

The annual report of the Company for year ended 31 December 2022 will be dispatched to the
shareholders in due course.

APPRECIATION

The Board of the Company would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders and
business partners for their continuous support and the fellow Directors and our staff for their
dedication and hard work.

By order of the Board
Boer Power Holdings Limited
Qian Yixiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2023

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises (i) five executive Directors:
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia, Mr. Zha Saibin (Mr. Yu Wai Ming as his alternate),
Mr. Qian Zhongming and Mr. Yu Wai Ming; and (ii) three independent non-executive
Directors: Mr. Tang Jianrong, Mr. Qu Weimin and Mr. Lai Wai Leuk.





